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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT @E#®H&EE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Sino
Katalytics Investment Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”), it is my pleasure to present you the Group’s audited
annual results for the year ended 30 June 2008 (the “Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

As the government progressively opens up its economic market,
China continues to attract significant attention in the private equity
sector from global private equity funds, regional funds and other
investors. Despite the recent global financial turmoil which affects
the global economy as a whole, private equity, as an alternative
asset class with low correlation to market volatility, is gaining
popularity compared to listed securities or bonds.

According to the Thomson Reuters mid-year 2008 private equity
report, China received US$1.7 billion in private equity investment up
to the middle of 2008, representing a slight increase from US$1.6
billion as compared to the same period last year. The report also
indicated that China attracted the highest amount of private equity
investment among all countries in the Asia Pacific region, excluding
Japan.

Riding on the expertise of our management team of investment
professionals, the Group is well-positioned to pinpoint quality
investment opportunities in Telecommunications/Media/Technology
(“TMT”) and capture the right moment to exit projects and to realise
capital gain at fair market value in our portfolio.

In order to strengthen our capital base for making future quality
investments, the Group issued 302,181,818 and 616,172,727
shares in two right issue exercises and the net proceeds were
approximately HK$52.4 million and HK$30.8 million in July 2007 and
August 2008 respectively. In addition, the Group issued 120,800,000
and 205,000,000 shares by the way of placement and successfully
raised HK$21.2 million and HK$14 million in August 2007 and
February 2008 respectively.

With the newly raised capital, the Group allocated additional
capital to our listed equity portfolio in the second half of 2007, and
reorganized our private equity portfolio. Instead of focusing on
early stage companies in the TMT sector, the Group has selected
several new projects which are more mature in their business
development, and are more likely to attract strategic investors or
achieving independent listing in a shorter period of time. Some of
the technology projects which required more time to realize their full
potential were successfully disposed of with modest capital gains
during the Period.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT @E#®H&EE

The following paragraphs describe some of the Group’s private
equity portfolio.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
CNI Bullion Limited (“CNI Bullion”)

The Group owns a 30% interest in CNI Bullion. CNI Bullion
is a member of the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society
and was formed in March 2005 by a group of experienced bullion
practitioners. CNI Bullion’s services include the trading of London
Gold, local Hong Kong Gold and London Silver; providing the latest
news of major financial markets; and also other ancillary value-
added services including price alerts through instant mobile phone
messaging.

Quidam Assets Limited (“Quidam”)

The Group owns approximately 18% interest in Quidam Assets
Limited. Quidam’s subsidiary, Orbrich (China) International Factors
Company Limited (“OIF”), is currently the only wholly foreign-owned
financial guaranty and factoring Company in China. OIF is licensed
by the Tianjin Government and the PRC Ministry of Commerce
to provide factoring services that include financing, sales ledger
administration and debt collection. It serves companies all over
China through its four factoring hubs located in Tianjin, Shanghai,
Chongging and Hong Kong. OIF is also expected to expand into
private equity investments as well as SME loan areas in the near
future and is well positioned to become a major financial services
operator in Northern China.

Winwide Management Limited (“Winwide”)

Winwide Management Limited was founded by two experienced
quantitative fund operators, whose expertise was the development
and operations of quantitative futures trading models. The track
record of the co-founders was a proprietary trading platform which
was sold to a leading hedge fund with an AUM of over US$70 billion
6 years ago and which is still operational today with consistent
performance track record. Through its newly set up subsidiary,
QF Alpha Research Limited, Winwide will develop a quantitative
back-testing and real time execution and distribution platform that
identifies, tests and implements superior trading strategies while
measuring and controlling risk in the process. The Group currently
owns 18% of Winwide and is planning to utilize the trading models
and platform developed by Winwide to manage a significant portion
of the Group’s liquid assets in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT @E#®H&EE

King Alliance Limited (“KAL”)

The Group owns 30% equity interest in KAL, which has a 51%
beneficial interest of an exclusive mobile lottery operator in northern
China. In addition to the popular and rapidly growing mobile lottery
operation, KAL’s subsidiary is also developing other value added
services and content for their mobile service subscribers, such as
stock picking services, social networking, and streaming media
content. The consistently increasing user base and consumption
of mobile services in China is a market which the Group is keen to
participate in.

Woddlock Investment Limited (“Woddlock”)

The Group is a lead investor into Woddlock during the Period, of
which the Group now owns 10%. The founders of Woddlock secured
an exclusive operation rights from the state-owned CCTV.com to
operate and manage its online travel channel (www.u.cctv.com,
or “UCCTV”), providing users with a superior multimedia platform
to view travel content and to acquire travel services online. The
services provided by the platform included information broadcast
and distribution, online travel services fulfillment, industry research,
advertising operations and business travel information for global
consumers. The Group is helping Woddlock to establish a WFOE
structure which is ready for future IPO overseas, and is expecting
Woddlock to build “UCCTV” into a well known brand in the online
travel market in China in the next few years.

IIN Network Education Limited (“IIN”)

The Group currently owns 15% of 1IN, which operates a Sino-
foreign joint venture subsidiary called China School Resources
(“CSR”) in Beijing along with a division of the Ministry of Education.
CSR is a provider of electronic education content to elementary
schools and middle schools throughout China since 1999, which
is used by over 2 million teachers and 20 million students in tens
of thousands of campuses. The Group invested into IIN in order
to help IIN transform from a traditional sales model into an online
distribution model in the next two years.

Investments in Securities

The Group continued to pursue our strategy of investing part of
its resources in listed securities as a risk diversification tool and to
provide liquidity as needed. Our allocation of financial resources in
the listed equities markets enabled the Group to capture the growth
in listed equities. However, given the recent downturn in the global
stock markets, the Group is being more cautious in allocating our
financial resources into the listed equities portfolio to maintain a
profitable investment strategy in listed securities.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT @E#®H&EE

PROSPECTS

This reporting Period covers the roller-coaster ride of global
markets during the past twelve months. The bullish days seem to be
far reaching at this point and the global economy is proving weaker
and weaker day-by-day. The Board has taken a very conservative
view of our listed and unlisted equity portfolio, and has therefore
decided to make provisions or impairments on all the doubtful
projects which have not been performing to our expectations, and
consequently the overall financial result was a net loss for the
Period. On the other hand, the Board is pleased to report that the
Group has a very low debt to equity ratio, and has not been involved
in any derivatives trading or products, and as a result, the Board
will continue to adhere to our prudent approach in the selection and
management of our investment portfolio.

Although the global markets and economies are expected to take
a long time to recover, the challenging times ahead may present a
golden opportunity for private equity investments as valuations are
lower. During the reporting Period, our balance sheet has revealed
that most of our available for sale investments (AFS) have recorded
significant valuation gains based on their current fair market
values compared to our original costs of investments. Therefore,
as we continue with our prudent investment strategy to nurture
our private equity portfolio, we will be in an ideal position to find
exit opportunities and generate higher return multiples in the next
two to three years when the capital markets are expected to have
recovered.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to all management team and staff members for their
dedication and contribution in the past year. We would also like to
extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our shareholders and
business partners for their continued support to and confidence in
the Group.

Chui Tak Keung, Duncan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 October 2008

Annual Report 2008 4 )

Al
REEBEEZRTSEERNT @A - KR
AR HHEUFNREFTR  2HREBETARRK
FoE EEEHRMETHFLTAEASAMNIE
BERBRFREEE  WRERREEETRPRR
ZEBEREIRE ERFFEERBESHE -
B EXSEFAKENEELRER  TRE
SHREMANMEERRS - ARBREREERERE
REMAS  BEERRK - EEENRERE -

HAZHHSEREEANRFTERRIEFE T EE
7t BEKREEE GERE - FIBREYAIHE TR ESF
AAERERERT-—EESHRE - NAFHRFE
A UTmEARERRREKASEL  REFBEE
BERRBREFAKETHEERESREREEER -
Hit EMSEERSET2RERK  BEZE
REER  URARME=ZFLRMISERZF
FHREARNBEERE  RNSEBNDH®K -

IS st
ESOEAUREN2BERAERETINGE

E-—F B I RBHABRBBAR VR - FELD

RREEBBHUAEEZRIIEREERH -

TE

&8 ZEENF+AZTNHE

BRPEKEFR AT SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS E=Z=ERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan, aged 39, Chairman of the
Group, is an experienced investor and business manager for direct
investment and private equity ventures in Asia. He received a
Bachelor of Science degree (Applied and Engineering Physics)
and a Master of Engineering degree (Operations Research and
Industrial Engineering) from Cornell University in 1991 and 1992
respectively. Mr. Chui has previously held positions at management
consulting firms, Andersen Consulting and A.T. Kearney, as well
as venture capital firm, Transpac Capital Group, which focused
on private equity investments in Asia, where Mr. Chui specialised
on the consumer products, hospitality industry, as well as
telecommunications, media and technology sectors.

Mr. Chow Ka Wo, Alex, aged 41, is an experienced corporate
investment and financial advisor. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Applied Mathematics and Economics from the University
of California at Berkeley and a Master of Arts degree in Economics
from Cornell University in the United States. He is currently an
executive director of Karl Thomson Financial Advisory Limited
(“KTFA”), which is a subsidiary of Karl Thomson Holdings Limited
(stock code: 007), a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also a Responsible Officer of KTFA within the
meaning of the SFO licensed to carry out Type 6 regulated activity
under the SFO (namely, advising on corporate finance).

Mr. Yau Chung Hong, aged 38, obtained a Bachelor degree
in Accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1993.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Yau possesses extensive experience and
knowledge in accounting and financial management.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS E=Z=ERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth, aged 48, is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong. He graduated from the Australian National
University in 1984 with a Bachelor degree in Arts (majoring in
computer science and accounting) and laws. He was admitted to
the High Court of Hong Kong in 1987 and is also a qualified lawyer
in both state and federal courts in Australia. Mr. Ma is a partner of
Chiu & Partners and his main practice area is securities, banking

and commercial law.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwan, aged 39, obtained a Bachelor degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1991.
He is a practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lam is currently a director of Charles H.C. Cheung
& CPA Limited.

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan, aged 36, is currently the
associate director of Go-To-Asia Investment Limited. Mr. Chan
graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and
Computer Information System from the University of New South
Wales, Australia. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of Certified
Public Accountants, Australia.

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao, aged 45, is currently holding a senior position
in an international reputable investment and business advisory
company. He obtained a postgraduate degree in finance from the
HEC School of Management (Hautes Etudes Commeciales) in
Paris, France and a bachelor of business administration degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has over 10 years of
experience in the corporate finance field that covers a wide array of
industries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group reported a turnover
of HK$13,356,186 (2007: HK$9,300,855) and net loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company of HK$23,442,685 (2007: profit
of HK$990,465). During the year, the Group managed to dispose
of some direct investment projects and re-allocate our financial
resources to our listed equities portfolio as well as several more
matured technology investments.

As at 30 June 2008, the net assets value (“NAV”) of the Group
was HK$230,870,414 (2007: HK$117,302,074), an increase of 96.82%
over the same period in 2007. The NAV per share of the Group was
HK$0.187 (2007: HK$0.194), representing a decrease of 3.6% over
the same period last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continued to maintain a healthy balance sheet
as at 30 June 2008. The Group’s bank balances amounted to
HK$7,689,941 (2007: HK$8,304,319) which accounted for 5.46%
(2007: 8.67%) of the Group’s total current assets. The Board believes
that the Group has sufficient resources to satisfy its working capital
requirements.

Capital Structure

On 19 December 2007, the authorised capital of the Company
was increased from $15,000,000 (divided into 1,500,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each) to $100,000,000 (divided into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each).

As a result of a two for one rights issue at a subscription price
of HK$0.18 per rights share, 302,181,818 shares were allotted and
issued on 23 July 2007. The Company had made two placements of
shares during the year, under which 120,800,000 and 205,000,000
shares were allotted and issued at HK$0.18 each and HK$0.07 each
on 27 September 2007 and 22 February 2008 respectively. There has
been no change in capital structure of the Company for the rest of
the year.

Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 June 2008, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities but has the following capital commitment:

Capital expenditure in respect of the
acquisitions of available-for-sale
investments contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group has a number of investment projects in the PRC and
may be subjected to a certain degree of investment return risk. In
spite of this, the Board believes that foreign exchange risks are
minimal as the Group mainly uses Hong Kong dollars to carry out its

business transactions.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2008, the Group had 4 employees excluding
directors. Total staff costs excluding directors’ remuneration
amounted to HK$835,510 (2007: HK$483,585). They perform clerical,
research, business development and administrative functions for the
Group. The Group’s policies are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of the performance and
experience of individual employees.

Significant Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the year under review, the Group has not made
any significant acquisition of subsidiaries but disposal of two
subsidiaries.

Charge of Assets

As at 30 June 2008, the Group had pledged the following assets
to secure the finance leases, debenture issued by the Company and
the margin payables:

BB W& D

HME R B

AEBERAESSEREER  THASE
FREZRADHAR - BEML  ESSAE
AEBZEBRFTBUBTEST  AEHERS
BEBEY -

ABDER

RZBEENEXNA=1TH A5EHIBEE
(FTEEESE) HBEIREA(TEREEHL) Y
835,510/8 L (ZFZ L F : 483,585/8 L) - WELE
AEBEINE HR ESRRRITBERE -
TEEFHBEERFSBRITTHEN  LRENES
ZRERKCHMETEETH -

EXARBREENEL R
REBEEFERN  AEBYRETEIANEHENE
RAZERAWE EHEWBMHBLFE -

EEER

REZZZENFARA=TH FEEEFAUTE
EFERERN ARRMBIT2ERIREMSHTR
HREZERG

2008 2007

—EENE —EELF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Plant and equipment WENRE 2,088,388 1,740,908
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 59,663,364 -
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEREZREECSRHEE 24,484,446 20,756,120
86,236,198 22,497,028
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The board of directors (“Board”) is committed to maintaining
statutory and regulatory standards and adherence to the principles
of corporate governance with emphasis on transparency,
independence, accountability and responsibility. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet
the rising expectations of shareholders and comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in
its Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) sets out two levels of corporate governance
practices, namely, mandatory Code provisions that a listed company
must comply with or explain its non-compliance, and recommended
best practices that listed companies are encouraged to comply with
but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The Company
is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions, save for the
deviations discussed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Board comprises three Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Board has appointed Committees to oversee different areas
of the Company’s affairs. The composition of the Board and the
Committees are given below and their respective responsibilities are
discussed in this report.

The number of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings
attended by each Director during the year under review is set out in
the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum number of
meetings in the period in which the individual was a Board Member
or Committee Member (as the case may be).

Name of Director

EENSR

Executive Directors HTEE
Chui Tak Keung, Duncan ®ER

Yau Chung Hong 580
Chow Ka Wo, Alex IEER
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth BBl
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Lam Kwan mOBE
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan W 87 %%
Shiu Siu Tao EAOH

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION {8 Zx fR 35 & F [R 2 A

Exe((ESE2 B IEREREIEREER
#WRFEXERZRE  BAEH B[
BEREE -ATEIRRTEHRS 2HENFER
BEREZEAER BRESSHRETEBLXE
AZEH  BEEETHRNEEZAXERTH -

BEBBARZMAEMRDE ([BFR]) EB A
HHEEMARA (T EMRAY) BHEXERERT
BIFRDTRRMERRzEXERTE  25R
BETARE-LTLRAKAET  RNEME A REE
TFAREZRRIEHERE  REBREER B
EHRABMUABTEEARERBETR 22BN - R
TTYXRKkzZREN  RRACBTERTA P Z2HE
PRI E -

=g
ESgERENaeEtHERaEERRAARE

2EF -ESFEZHE  EWRERNRHRTE - B

MBITZ A WA RARBRR 2EEBANEBAR -

ESEM=FITES  —EHYTESR=F
BYFHTESAR ESECEAETEES
DHERARDTEEECER - ADAZESER
BEREEREZEARNT  r MEZEEZBERS
BERNBE-—D 2HMl -

REESER SESHFESESEREES
ERZRBERTR -ERAZBFEERALS
EEZERERESZTZEERE (RBEABERME) B
BATHEZREZERRE -

Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meetings

Exeed FRKZETER ¥FHZEeEl

15/(16) N/AT3E A N/ATE A
12/(16) N/AT i A N/ATiE A
15/(16) N/ATiE A N/ATiE A
71(8) N/AT i A N/AT3E A
5/(8) 2/(2) 1/(1)
7/(8) 2/(2) 1/(1)

5/(8) 1/(2) 1/(1)
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing their
independence from the Company in accordance with the guidelines
on director independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such Directors to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out on page 8 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and
expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the
interests of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will review
its composition regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate
balance of expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively
oversee the business of the Company.

The Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective
duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s
performance and current market situation. Details of emoluments of
the Directors from the Group for the year are disclosed in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Directors is recommended by the Board
of Directors. The Board will then take into account criteria such as
expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when considering a
new appointment.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles”), all Directors except the Chairman and/or Managing
Director are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company. New Directors appointed
by the Board during the year are required to retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first annual general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors excluding the Chairman
and/or Managing Director, or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third are
required to retire from office.

The existing Articles governing the retirement of Directors
deviate from the Code provisions in the following aspects: (i) unlike
the other Directors, the Chairman and/or Managing Director is not
subject to retirement by rotation; (ii) new Directors appointed to
fill casual vacancies are subject to election by shareholders at the
first annual general meeting instead of the first general meeting
after their appointments; and (iii) the Directors who are subject to
retirement by rotation are not explicitly subject to retirement at least
once every three years. The Board may review the above-mentioned
practice and consider amending the Articles when necessary.

Annual Report 2008 4 )

REZERECHELRENE XK HEBER
HtbEXR MHBEEAR FBIFHTESEREL
TRAKNESH UM 255 EEBEIELB LM
Bt RAARRZEESHEBELAL -

RABEE  AADEB2ZAAEHHERE
FHESH - EREFEARREEB 2 HE
BENERAE EESHEERBT R E LR
HRHZER  UREAEEARRZ A B8
B ER AR AR S WA - Y
RERSEARAEZTE  HUREE R EE
AR 2R o

ESHFMNSERESRALAZHBE A2
ARBARENTREBE EENAFERNEE
WE B & B RN G S RT3 -

EECZRAEREE

NESCEAMESSRE EELBRNE
ABFETEFERAZSEAD - EF  HERAR
EEFHE -

BREAQATZABZERRMA (AR » FEE
EMEIER RESLEERIN) BREAQXTZR
REFASLIHESE ITESIEE RERES
EEZACHESNECEZAAZERRRBE
RELERFE UAEREF -BE NEERRA
FRAELAE=92—R(NESTFAETE=H
SR RELBTBBA=92—2E8E (TEF
FER,/ REBHKE)RMT-

RTERESREZARNETI 2 mEET RN
EE)EER RESLLEEERESR A
BIREMES . (BETEBGREEZRCHESA
EHEZER2ERRRBFRE (MIFEBRRR
RE)LERIESRREE R(i)REAEHLE
REEABESRZESRIEB=FRE-—R -&
EETRN EAMEYRBERZBETMAA -

BRPEKEFR AT SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION

13



14

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &®XEG#HE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. The Company has appointed its Chairman
but not Chief Executive, and decisions are made collectively by
the Executive Directors under the leadership of the Chairman. The
Board believes that the present arrangement enables the Company
to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve
the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively in response
to the changing environment. The Board also believes that the
Company already has a strong corporate governance structure
in place to ensure effective oversight of management. The Board
will continually review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure to assess whether any changes are necessary.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Currently all Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have no specific term of appointment but they
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to serve the purpose of this Code provision.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all of the three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwan, who
possesses extensive financial and accounting experience in
commercial sectors. It is responsible for appointment of external
auditors, review of the Group’s financial information and oversight
of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. It meets regularly to review
financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has
unrestricted access to personnel, records and external auditors and
senior management.

The Committee has specific written terms of reference which are
of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in Code Provision.
In the year ended 30 June 2008, the Audit Committee held two
meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed the final results for the year
ended 30 June 2007 and the interim accounts for the six months
ended 31 December 2007 respectively and the internal control
structure. It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing
the corporate governance requirements as set out in the Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, composed of all three
Independent Non-executive Directors, is responsible for reviewing
and determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and
senior management. The committee members elect one of them to
take the chair at the commencement of each meeting.

The Committee has specific written terms of reference which are
of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in Code Provision.
One meeting was held by the Committee in the year ended 30 June
2008.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
system of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to oversee
the Group’s operational systems for the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company appointed SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as
auditors of the Company immediately following the resignation
of BDO McCabe Lo Limited on 28 August 2006. Total auditors’
remuneration in relation to statutory and other audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$515,000 (2007: HK$400,000). No fee was
paid for other non-audit services provided by the Auditors for the
Company and its subsidiaries during the years ended 30 June 2007
and 30 June 2008.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial

reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on page 23.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year and they all confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

The Company will consider adopting a code of conduct
governing securities transactions with terms no less exacting than
that required by the Listing Rules by employees who may possess or
have access to price sensitive information.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual
reports.

The Company regards its annual general meeting as an
opportunity for direct communications between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external
auditors make an effort to attend the annual general meeting to
address shareholders’ queries. The Company also responds to
requests for information and queries from the shareholders and
investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management direct.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS =EZ#+%

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investing in listed and
unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
geographical segments is set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 25 to 99. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2008.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 June 2008
amounted to HK$128,654,543 (2007: HK$58,113,258), calculated in
accordance with the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2008 4 )

ARAEEE(ESE)MAREAXRARE
EEEZE_ZETN\FAAZTHLEEZFERS
REERI WK -

TEXEBREEHBEIN

RRABZEBEBREETBRPTPEARKNE
((FENDRELTRFLHAR - MBRR 2K
BRGEMBHRM T2 -

BHBIADAFEAEBXBE 2O MBARES
BA TS SR AP AE8 o

RER DK
BE-ZZ/\FAA-HALFEAEEZ ¥
B URADARSEEREE B ZHBHRRER
EBEEVAZFEHBHREN - ESFTEHIK
BRBE-—TT\FAASTALFEZRERE -

B AR R it
ARARENZBRARDHERRGL U BH
K330 ¢

AEERFNZHERDHERRGEELS
DELE

CIRES 34

RIEFEREZAMTE  R-ZTNFARA=T
H > ARwEZ a5 RE#E%128,654,543/8 T (=
ZTTLF :58,113,258/8 1) ©

BrRBRE

ARBzARNERMALERIEAELBER
B2AE  MASHBEARNENERERELR
-

BERKE
AEERFAZRERRELBEBEARES
B3R R HIEE16 ©

BRPEKEFR AT SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION

11



18

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS =EZ#+%

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from
the audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate to
conform with current year’s presentation, is set out on page 100.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 30 September 2003 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. No share option has been granted during the
year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan
Mr. Yau Chung Hong

Mr. Chow Ka Wo, Alex

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwan

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao

In accordance with Article 88(1) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Chow Ka Wo, Alex and Mr. Chan Ming Sun,
Jonathan shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election
thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 30 June 2008, none of the Directors have entered into
any service agreement with any member of the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES
As at 30 June 2008, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules (collectively
“Discloseable Interests or Short Positions”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Chui Tak Keung, Duncan (Note) mER (Kat)
Chow Ka Wo, Alex AR

Note: Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan, an executive director of the Company,
was personally interested in 44,500,00 shares and deemed to be
interested in 91,800,000 shares by virtue of his control in FLM

Investment Limited.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief

executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
Discloseable Interests or Short Position as at 30 June 2008.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2008, the parties (other than the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company) which had interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or to
be disclosed to the Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited (Note) FBERFERAR (HF)

Note: Allied Group Limited, Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited, AP Emerald
Limited, AP Jade Limited, Lee Seng Huang, Lee Seng Hui, Lee Su
Hwei, Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited, and Sun Hung Kai Investment
Services Limited are deemed to be interested in the said shares by
virtue of their direct or indirect control in Sun Hung Kai Securities

Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2008, the Directors were
not aware of any other person who had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director, the chief executive or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION {8 Zx fR 35 & F [R 2 A

FERR

REZZZENFARA=TH REAQXFRH KA
EROTHEEATERBREZSZRBEMRAE336
GRAEFEZ2BCMARBERTZRAERMEXV
ME2RIDBABMA R ARB 2 EEIXRZAL
(BESERADADEBITHAERIM AT ¢

AAFEREECIIEBLZERER

Number of issued Shareholding

shares held percentage
BEEBRITROHKE BRESHL
547,422,727 44.42%

BEEABRAG BEME (FE)BRAE

AP Emerald Limited * AP Jade Limited * /2
St AL FEHEL L HBEERA
AIRFHEERERBERL AJHE R EERFE
FHEEBRFERAGZRE  F il #ERR LI

Bt -

BREXFIIBEESN  R-ZEZBNFAA=1H
EEUFAABETHMALTRAR AR RAEBER
HHEEREZEZRPERAEXVEBE2RIDF
ATHERALBRAQRARERSRAEHELIE
BFEREFE2ECMERIAR o

EEREROIERERE ZER

REREMERE  BECDEANES  THAR
FRESEZEBHIIBRAUT 2 FLZREABELS
REARGREEE 2 EF MRS - RETFET
EEMNEREER - MADQBHE B LRI E
FHEMZE  BRESREMEMEABERES
BEEAER -

EEEH
FREBBREAS D NEBEBRHEAEE
B ZERRTBTIRTEEAEL o

Annual Report 2008 3



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS =EZ#+%

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts (not being contracts in the ordinary
course of business) were entered into by the Company during the
year, which are or may be material:

1. Placing and underwriting agreement date 23 August 2007
made between the Company and Get Nice Investment Limited
on placing 120,800,000 new Shares of the Company at a
placing price of HK$0.18 each;

2. Debenture dated 31 December 2007 issued by the
Company to Grace Vantage Limited for the principal sum of
HK$8,000,000;

3. Placing agreement dated 28 January 2008 entered into
between the Company and Sun Hung Kai Investment Services
Limited in relation to placing of 205,000,000 new Shares of
the Company at a placing price of HK$0.07 per Share;

4. Debenture dated 21 April 2008 issued by the Company to
Kingman Development Limited for the principal sum of
HK$9,000,000; and

5. Underwriting Agreement dated 28 May 2008 entered into
between the Company and Sun Hung Kai Investment Services
Limited concerning a rights issue.

Save as disclosed, no other material contract (not being contract
entered into in the ordinary course of business) was entered into by
any member of the Group during the year.

LITIGATION

As at 30 June 2008, none of the members of the Group is
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors or
the Company to be pending or threatened by or against any member
of the Group.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party and connected transactions of the
Group during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Details of the subsequent events of the Group are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited retires and a resolution to
authorize the Board for its reappointment as auditor of the
Company or appointment of another auditor will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chow Ka Wo, Alex
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 October 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ®BM#&%#AHRE

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
16/F., United Centre

feksia

Shme‘ZOin{}

95 Queensway, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
BRPTEREFRAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Katalytics Investment Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 25 to 99 which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
30 June 2008, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ®BM#&%#AHRE

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2008
and of the Group’s loss and cash flow for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants
Lo Wa Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P03427

Hong Kong
29 October 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #Z&tEm%
For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE
2008 2007
—ZENF —EELHF
Notes HK$ HK$
Htat BT BT
Turnover B 7 13,356,186 9,300,855
Change in fair value of financial assets RARERERRAERE
at fair value through profit or loss ZERMEEZE (15,384,545) 141,977
Other income Hibuwg A 9 6,293,706 2,768,276
Administrative expenses THEH (17,486,331) (8,451,876)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of T 5 H i FE T BR X
other receivables ZREEEE 21 (13,364,235) =
Finance costs Al & B A 10 (2,800,130) (2,801,536)
Share of results of an associate FEL B & N B A 17 6,385,914 169,653
(Loss) profit before tax BRELAT (B5E) =R (22,999,435) 1,127,349
Income tax expense FriS BB 11 (443,250) (136,884)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (FBE) &R
12 (23,442,685) 990,465
Dividend BE 13 - -
(Loss) earnings per share — basic Bk (BB EBR —&EXK 14 (0.0288) 0.0024
— diluted — ¥ N/ATIE A N/AT3E A

Annual Report 2008 4 )

BHRAPEKEFR AT SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION

23



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #H#&8EE&EX

At 30 June 2008 R=ZFZEN\FRA=+H

2008 2007
—EENE —EETLF
Notes HK$ HK$
et BT BT
Non-current assets 3F5ﬁ§bi§§
Plant and equipment = K& 16 3,350,491 2,205,307
Interest in an associate REEE QTR 2R 17 11,259,186 4,873,272
Loan receivables FE L E FAFRIE 18 10,000,000 20,220,000
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19 97,492,972 29,893,500
122,102,649 57,192,079
Current assets RBEE
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 19 71,043,665 26,553,336
Financial assets at fair value through ?”“’&ﬁﬁﬁ"?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@)ﬁﬁ
profit or loss TeRMEE 20 24,484,446 20,756,120
Prepayments, deposits and other i‘EﬁTAIE ZekHAM
receivables FE W k1B 21 3,228,165 26,044,871
Amounts due from investee companies Euﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ,ﬁ 22 14,944,723 861,000
Amounts due from related companies FEWREE D 7 23 13,400 589,800
Amount due from an associate FE Uk — S B " 7 17 19,378,500 12,698,510
Bank balances RIT4HEER 24 7,689,941 8,304,319
140,782,840 95,807,956
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H A FE A 5 ﬂﬁlﬁﬁ§%+%§ﬁﬁ 25 16,992,516 6,604,065
Amounts due to directors EAESHE 26 634,835 415,203
Amounts due to related companies J?Eﬁ@giﬁ’&a%ﬁﬁ 27 1,465,873 4,503,275
Tax payable FE 1+ %18 1,030,134 586,884
Debentures BRERE 28 10,000,000 22,000,000
Obligations under finance leases & A A A IE
- due within one year ——F R E 5 29 779,564 474,576
30,902,922 34,584,003
Net current assets MEBEEFE 109,879,918 61,223,953
231,982,567 118,416,032
Capital and reserves ERRFHE
Share capital ;&N 30 12,323,454 6,043,636
Reserves & 218,546,960 111,258,438
Total equity attributable to equity holders K“ ARESEAEBGRES
of the Company Fag] 230,870,414 117,302,074
Non-current liability FEREEE
Obligations under finance leases b & A AE
- due after one year ——FRZH 29 1,112,153 1,113,958
231,982,567 118,416,032

The consolidated financial statements on pages 25 to 99 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29

October 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chui Tak Keung, Duncan
Director

EFE

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZ F ER EFR
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TAZ TN BEEESHAERRERIT > LAHUT

R&R#EZF:

Chow Ka Wo, Alex
AR
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #&SaEa28%

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

EARRERE AERL
Investments
Share Share revaluation Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
I R EE REEGRHE R BE st
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 July 2006 R-ZEZRE
+tA—H 1,146,409 89,612,428 - (11,744,592) 79,014,245
Profit and total recognised REEERNR
income for the year ERERM AL - = = 990,465 990,465
Gain on fair value changes of ~ REZEERR 2 A #
available-for-sale investments ~ HERER WAL
and total income recognised ZAREEH 2 WE
directly in equity (Note 19) (BaE19) - - 15,789,836 - 15,789,836
Issue of bonus shares BITALR
(Note 30(a)) (H1#30(2)) 4,168,227 (4,168,227) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares DB ER X BT
by placing (Note 30(b)) LER (H1:230(b)) 720,000 22,431,000 - - 23,160,000
Shares issue expenses R ETEMR - (1,652,472) - = (1,652,472)
At 30 June 2007 and R=FEZtF
1 July 2007 AAZTHR
“ET+E+LA-H 6,043,636 106,222,729 15,789,836 (10,754,127) 117,302,074
Loss and total recognised REEBER
expense for the year ERIF AT - - - (23,442,685)  (23,442,685)
Gain on fair value changes of REZEERRAZ
available-for-sale investments  A[EHERER
and total income recognised WABEz DN AE
directly in equity (Note 19) B8z W (AE19) - = 50,061,917 = 50,061,917
Transfer to profit or loss on EBREEAHEERE
sales of available-for-sale ZaRREE (4232)
investment (Note 32) - - (1,163,336) - (1,163,336)
Issue of ordinary shares by R AR BTEBR
rights issue (Note 30(c)) (B3#30(c)) 3,021,818 51,370,909 - = 54,392,727
Issue of ordinary shares by UEERRBTEBER
placing (Note 30(d)) (H1#30(d)) 3,258,000 32,836,000 - - 36,094,000
Shares issue expenses R ETER - (2,374,283) - = (2,374,283)
At 30 June 2008 R-BENE
~A=1+H 12,323,454 188,055,355 64,688,417 (34,196,812) 230,870,414
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

mEREMER

2008 2007
—ZENF —EELHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES S
(Loss) profit before tax BB AT (B518) & F (22,999,435) 1,127,349
Adjustments for: BEHUTHE
Depreciation of plant and equipment BERRETE 1,196,271 800,946
Impairment loss recognised in respect EREMERFEZ
of other receivables BEEE 13,364,235 =
Interest income FE U A (3,273,557) (2,102,153)
Interest expenses FEBX 2,800,130 2,801,536
Change in fair value of financial BRARERERRREEZ
assets at FVTPL ERMEEQAAEEZE 15,384,545 (141,977)
Share of results of an associate FEAL & N B A (6,385,914) (169,653)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHBEERE 2 WA
investments (1,010,000) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME A8z W (1,617,820) (500,000)
Loss on written-off of plant and WHERERZEZEE
equipment 272,887 -
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HEMERZREZEE 47,088 3,482
Operating cash flows before movements REtEBEESEF A K&
in working capital BE&RE (2,221,570) 1,819,530

Increase in financial assets at FVTPL

Decrease (increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase in other payables and accruals

BAREREBRRANEE 2
EREEZM

BNRIE - RERAMBER
IR A ($5h0)

H b B SR K FE ST & RN

(19,112,871)

10,189,519
6,798,369

(11,740,291)

(7,911,301)
3,597,467

Cash used in operations REEBFERSE (4,346,553) (14,234,595)
Interest received 2 RFE 1,587,276 734,219
Interest on bank and other borrowings EREFREZHENSZRITR

wholly repayable within five years Hh B F 2 (2,550,284) (1,172,472)
Interest on obligations under finance leases  EEHNEIEZF 8 (159,764) (103,620)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES KREXKMERSFEE (5,469,325) (14,776,468)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #HS&HERER

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

2008 2007
—ZENF —EELHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Increase in loan receivables FE W & SRR IE 18 N - (20,220,000)
(Increase) decrease in amount due from R E N R FRIE (35 m) m 2
investee companies (12,977,990) 10,144,846
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments WA it HE&RE (60,000,000) (7,800,000)
Increase in amount due from an associate JE U B B SR IR B N (6,679,990) (6,368,500)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from FEW B E N AR IE/J'X 2 (&)
related companies 576,400 (577,100)
Purchases of plant and equipment BERERZE (1,978,093) (332,419)
Sales proceeds from disposal of HEAHEEREZME
available-for-sale investments B & FKIE 14,500,000 =

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32) HENB AR (ME32) (1,500,000) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHFERESFE (68,059,673) (25,153,173)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BIOTEBERASHRIE 90,486,727 23,160,000

Proceeds from issue of debentures BITEREMESRE 17,000,000 22,000,000

Repayment of debentures EEERERE (29,000,000) =

Expenses on issue of ordinary shares BITEBRRMAX (2,374,283) (1,652,472)

Repayments of obligations under finance EEmERORE

leases (380,154) (428,750)

Decrease in amounts due to related ERBEQRARERD

companies (3,037,402) (169,931)

Increase in amounts due to directors EAESFIEE 219,732 208,770
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH 2H S FH 72,914,620 43,117,617
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH HERREEEY (BD)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 10 76 48 (614,378) 3,187,976
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FPBEESRBEEEEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,304,319 5,116,343
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAZRELEEY

END OF YEAR,

represented by, bank balances RIT4EER 7,689,941 8,304,319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in investing
in listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on 1 July 2007.

Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) 1

Capital Disclosures

(Amendment)
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation  Interim Financial Reporting and
(“Int”) 10 Impairment

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share

Transactions
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendment)

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
(Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008.
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008.

Presentation of Financial Statements'’
Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation’

Reclassification of Financial Assets®
Share-based Payment - Vesting

Conditions and Cancellations’
Business Combinations?

Operating Segments'

Service Concession Arrangements?

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction®

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate!

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation®

g Effective from 1 July 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will
affect the accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control, which will be accounted for as equity transactions.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and revised standards, amendment or interpretations
will have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.
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For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESEE @

Annual Report 2008 4 )

Investment in an associate
An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a

joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method at 25% per annum.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in
the year in which the item is dereognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESEE @

Annual Report 2008 4 )

Financial instruments (Continued) cof . =)
Effective interest method BB FFE A

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL mainly included the financial assets
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including loan receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from an associate/related
companies/investee companies and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL
or loans and receivables.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss of financial assets
below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as loan
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loans receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from investee companies/related companies/an associate
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When the
loan receivables, other receivables, amounts due from investee
companies/related companies/an associate are considered
uncollectible, they are written-off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables, amounts
due to directors/related companies, debentures and obligations
under finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment losses

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for trading of listed securities and
represents amounts receivable for interest income, dividend
income from investments in listed securities and net gain on
disposal of financial assets at FVTPL and available-for-sale
investments.

Sale of available-for-sale securities and equity investments at
FVTPL are recognised on a trade date basis.

Dividend income from investments in listed securities including
financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset including financial
assets at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recongnised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other assets are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are

described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required

to makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other

factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

()

(i)

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The determination
of the useful lives involves management’s estimation. The
Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful
lives of the plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will be
changed in the future period.

Estimation of impairment loss of plant and
equipment

The impairment loss for plant and equipment is recognised
for the amounts by which the carrying amounts exceed
its recoverable amount, in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The
Group has assessed and reviewed annually for impairment
loss whenever events or change in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The directors determined the value-in-use of plant and
equipment is approximate their carry values and therefore
no impairment loss was provided during the year ended 30
June 2008.
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4.

Annual Report 2008 4 )

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(iii) Estimation of impairment loss recognised in
respect of loan and other receivables
The Group determines the impairment loss recognised
in respect of loan and other receivables in respect of
advances to the debtors based on objective evidence of
impairment and historical loss experience of the individual
balance of the counterparty.

(iv) Valuation of available-for-sale investments
In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar unlisted equity securities, the Group determines
the fair values by using valuation techniques based on
information from a variety of sources, including the latest
information of the available-for-sale investments.

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale investments
as at 30 June 2008 was HK$168,536,637 (2007:
HK$56,446,836), further details of which are set out in
Note 19.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
included debentures and obligations under finance leases
as disclosed in Notes 28 and 29 respectively, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holder of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of debentures, new share issues and share
buy-back.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €I A
a) Categories of financial instruments SRMIAZSE
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBERERZRARECSREE 24,484,446 20,756,120
Loan and receivables BEREEWRRIE
— loan receivables —JELI&E#\?'X 10,000,000 20,220,000
- other receivables, net —HibEEWRIE  F58 2,752,564 25,777,154
- amounts due from investee —FELBI?Enyﬁ’D\ B FKIE
companies 14,944,723 861,000
— amounts due from related - EREEQRARE
companies 13,400 589,800
— amount due from an associate — W E N B IE 19,378,500 12,698,510
- bank balances — R 1T 4564 7,689,941 8,304,319
54,779,128 68,450,783
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 168,536,637 56,446,836
247,800,211 145,653,739
Financial liabilities 2HEE
Other financial liabilities at REHEAAINEzHMEREAE
amortised cost
— other payables — H A EAT FRIE 13,925,334 4,662,141
— amounts due to directors —-BENESFE 634,835 415,203
— amounts due to related - ENBEQARE
companies 1,465,873 4,503,275
— debentures —EREE 10,000,000 22,000,000
- obligations under finance — RS AR IE
leases 1,891,717 1,588,534
27,917,759 33,169,153

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZ F ER EFR

Annual Report 2008 3



Annual Report 2008 4 )

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, financial assets at FVTPL, loan
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related
companies/an associate/investee companies, bank
balances, other payables, amounts due to directors/related
companies, debentures and obligations under finance
leases. Details of these finance instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

i)  Currency risk
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Accordingly, the management considers the foreign
exchange risk to the Group is not significant.

ii)  Other price risk
The Group’s available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at each balance sheet date. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to equity security price risk. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

ii) Other price risk (Continued)
In respect of the financial assets at FVTPL, the
following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the balance sheet date.

e P mRME

6. €M I A @)
b) HBERERERFERIEE @)

5 B (1)

i)

HiE &R ()

REAANBEREZRAEEZEH
BEMS  TRESMHEMITER
ETEZBRTREMAREASE
A RBERERGEE B ZREE
E BEAAEREBERAEEZS

Carrying Increase
amount of (decrease) Increase
equity in loss (decrease)
investments before tax in equity
RAERE MR Bi AT A5 18 iR 7 42 hn
ZIREE # i O 2>) (R 2)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2008 —EENE
Investments listed in: RUTHEz EHRE !
Hong Kong & &
- financial assets —RARBEREBRRRN
at FVTPL BEEHEE 24,484,446 2,448,445 -
2007 —EELF
Investments listed in: RUTHEZ EHmEE :
Hong Kong & &
- financial assets —RARBEREBRRRN
at FVTPL EEzemEE 20,756,120 2,071,612 -
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For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Annual Report 2008 4

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
as at 30 June 2008 in relation to each class of financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimize the
credit risk, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual financial assets at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is
minimal.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Maturity analysis
The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at 30
June 2008 and 30 June 2007. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group is
required to pay.

As at 30 June 2008

6. €M I A @)

b)

BEEREERBERRBEER @

FRH 7 #

TRFANAEBZEHEBR=-ZZN
FRAZTBER=ZZEZLFARAZ=TH
ZRBEHNEMBER - TRNDBESHE
BzARMRREREMAS  ZETHE
BENRBAEBANR 2R AHIE -

R=ZBZENFEARA=+H

Total

On demand/ One year contractual
within to Over undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount

RHRER
RER/—FR -EEWME EBME RERBAH REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B B
Other payables Hip A E 13,925,334 - - 13,925,334 13,925,334
Amounts due to directors EREERE 634,835 - - 634,835 634,835
Amounts due to related companies FE{fEIE 1\ BFE 1,465,873 - - 1,465,873 1,465,873
Debentures ERE 10,600,000 - - 10,600,000 10,000,000
Obligations under finance leases ~ EAE BN &IE 943,209 825,164 537,678 2,306,051 1,891,717
27,569,251 825,164 537,678 28,932,093 27,917,759

As at 30 June 2007 R-ZEZEtEAXA=1+H

Total

On demand/ One year contractual
within to Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount

BRRER
RER/—FR —FEWME BAME HERBELE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT BT
Other payables Hip A RE 4,662,141 - - 4,662,141 4,662,141
Amounts due to directors EREERE 415,203 = = 415,203 415,203
Amounts due to related companies JEABIE A AFRE 4,503,275 - - 4,503,275 4,503,275
Debentures ERE 24,800,000 - - 24,800,000 22,000,000
Obligations under finance leases BB N RIE 590,808 646,073 759,694 1,996,575 1,588,534
34,971,427 646,073 759,694 36,377,194 33,169,153
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For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERIE@®#®)
c) Fair value c) ARfE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are tRMEEFERMEBEZAABEEENT :

determined as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial - EBEEBRERRREM4ILRERR
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and mEEECEeREERERMEEZ
traded on active liquid markets are determined with ARENDHNSEMBHEEAE
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices REBREEE &

respectively; and

—  the fair value of other financial assets and financial - HitemEERERABEBZANRE
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally BARZEBEREARBITHMRITH
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash BERXRSEEZMEEERESI MM
flow analysis using prices from observable current BE o

market transactions as input.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial HREREERESRBEN S ER
liabilities reported in the consolidated balance sheet of the BRI AEEGREEEEERAME
Group approximate their fair values due to their immediate BEMEERSRHEBZRAEEAL D
or short-term maturities. RERE -
7. TURNOVER 7. EXH
Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable on EEBREFTFARECEWRERFENT :

investments during the year as follows:

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Turnover R
Dividend income from investments RELMESZREBA

in listed securities 119,315 70,691
Interest income FE WA 139,504 60,924

Net gain on disposal of financial HERARBREZERAEEZ
assets at FVTPL TREEZF R 13,097,367 9,169,240
13,356,186 9,300,855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #Z—

ZENFRA=Z+THILLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. oMEH
The Group is principally engaged in investing in listed and AEEFERERERLETRFELTAF
unlisted companies. Accordingly, no further analysis by bt WRREZREESIBZE - - £
business segment is provided. In determining the Group’s EARAEBE 2 ED SIS EX£5 - FHX - EE
geographical segments, turnover, expenditure, assets and FEBNREEZ M DE -
liabilities are attributed to the segments based on the location
of the assets.
Geographical segments i & 5 2
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to AEERMESHEI 2R ERELEEER
operating results and segment assets and liabilities by DEHEERBEIMVBRMNT :
geographical segments, is presented below:
Consolidated income statement mEBR%
For the year ended 30 June: BEANA=THLEEE
Hong Kong The PRC Consolidated
b HE &E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENFE CZEBtE BB \F C—EBETtE CZBENFf CZEEBLE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT B BT
SEGMENT REVENUE: AU 11,460,453 8,098,950 1,895,733 1,201,905 13,356,186 9,300,855
Change in fair value of RARERERERA
financial assets at FVTPL RECSREEZ
AAELE (15,384,545) 141,977 - - (15,384,545) 141,977
(3,924,092) 8,240,927 1,895,733 1,201,905  (2,028,359) 9,442,832
SEGMENT RESULTS PHEE (26,994,186) 2,861,156 1,895,733 1,201,905 (25,098,453) 4,063,061
Unallocated corporate expenses AABARBEX (1,486,766) (303,829)
Finance costs EE %N (2,800,130)  (2,801,536)
Share of results of an associate EEE N R%E 6,385,914 169,653 - - 6,385,914 169,653
(Loss) profit before tax BRBiAl (B58) & Al (22,999,435) 1,127,349
Income tax expense FiEmE% (443,250) (136,884)
(Loss) profit for the year KEE (F8) &5 (23,442,685) 990,465
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. AEEHR A
Geographical segments (Continued) hE 5 B (&)
Consolidated balance sheet SEEEARBR
At 30 June: RAB=+H:
Hong Kong The PRC Consolidated
E# H &E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE CZEZtE ZEENE C—EELE ZCZEENE CZEETLE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT BT BT
Segment assets AHEE 98,378,085 97175228 153,248,218 50,051,535 251,626,303 148,126,763
Interest in an associate RES AR 11,250,186 4,873,272 - - 11,259,186  4,873272
Total assets BEE 109,637,271 102,048,500 153,248,218 50,951,535 262,885,489 153,000,035
Total liabilities BER 32,015,075 35,697,961 - - 32,015,075 35,697,961
Other segment information: HtnBER
For the year ended 30 June: HERA=THLEE:
Capital expenditure BRRY 2,978,093 1,707,419 - - 2,978,093 1,707,419
Depreciation g 1,196,271 800,946 - - 1,196,271 800,946
Loss on disposal of plant and HERERZEZER
equipment 47,088 3,482
Loss on written-off of plant and WEmERREZER
equipment 272,887 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2k (1,617,820) (500,000)
Gain on disposal of HETHRHERE
available-for-sale investments Pl (1,010,000) -
Impairment loss recognised in BREMERTEZ
respect of other receivables HEEE 13,364,235 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

e P mRME

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HkA
2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAMHRBERE 2 W&
investments 1,010,000 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHMB Az WE 1,617,820 500,000
Interest income on convertible loan W ATREBEERZ BB A
receivables 800,000 139,178
Interest income on amounts due BRESREQNTRIEZ
from investee companies FE WA 885,733 1,230,418
Interest income on other receivables H fth fE I R IE 2 A2 WA 1,587,824 732,557
Sundry income HIE WA 392,329 166,123
6,293,706 2,768,276
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B E A A
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest expenses on borrowings wholly ZEREFABHEZEEZIEMX !
repayable within five years:
— bank overdrafts —RITEX 3,834 1,760
— debentures —EEE 1,371,007 1,372,603
— margin accounts —FFRIRF 1,265,525 1,092,398
— amounts due to related companies -ENBEEQARZHE - 231,155
- finance leases —EEMRLY 159,764 103,620
2,800,130 2,801,536

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EF R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. Fi 15 ﬁl’aﬁsz
On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed BEILEERZ NERAZ+TABBEB=
the Revenue Bill 2008 which includes the reduction in corporate ﬁf)\iﬂikﬂ%{ﬂﬁ* EF‘@?EEWEE’D\ﬁFﬁ
profit tax rate by 1% to 16.5% effective from the year of BHFi1% > £16.5%HIKF EN=

assessment 2008/2009.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 30 June
2008.

The income tax expense for the years can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before tax per the consolidated income statement
as follows:

ihfﬁnﬁﬁi BRIRAERL ©

BEZZEZENEAA=THLEEEZTBAE
BT ERB SR 216.5% (ZFEF L F .
17.5%) 5T &

ERFERESTRESBERZBBA
(B 18) RIS BT :

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit before tax BRELA (B5E) &R (22,999,435) 1,127,349
Tax at domestic income tax rate of Bt TSR E16.5% (=B L F .
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) 17.5%) st E 2B 1E (3,794,907) 197,286
Tax effect of share of results of an BEBE N REBEHETE
associate (1,053,676) (29,689)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAEARBRAZHEZE
tax purpose (347,190) (42,753)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR EZE 2 RESE
for tax purpose 2,887,685 4,434
Utilisation of tax losses previously ERIRBERZHREEBZEH
not recognised - (1,169)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERFEBRE2RETE 2,751,338 8,775
Income tax expense FT8Bim 443,250 136,884
At 30 June 2008, the Group has unused tax losses of R-EENERA=1TH NEEELATHA

HK$31,654,699 (2007: HK$14,979,921) available for offset 7% &5 18 231,654,699 T (= E L F ¢
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been 14,979,921 7t) » ISR AR F - HRA K
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profits RENARFEEFAEERE » I EERIELR
HEE - ABANBEER AT ERPEE -

streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s (loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after

12. X5 E (BR) & F

e P mRME

AEEZAFE (BR) SRS :

charging:
2008 2007
—ZENF —EELHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 15): BEEMR (faE15) - 6,626,000 1,060,000
Staff costs BIEAK
Salaries, allowances and other benefits £ - JE2B R H AL 5FFl 764,827 463,318
MPF Scheme contributions BT B 70,683 20,267
Total staff costs F= RN 7,461,510 1,543,585
Auditor’s remuneration — current year ZEEME -AEE 450,000 400,000
Depreciation of plant and equipment BEREZEITE
— owned assets -BEEE 281,502 206,943
— leased assets —-HEEE 914,769 594,003
Minimum lease payments under HEMERBLELEHOZ
operating lease for rented premises 53k 1,210,890 576,086
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HERERREZEIE 47,088 3,482
Loss on written-off of plant and MWHERERZBEZEE
equipment 272,887 -
Share of income tax expense of BB E AR 2 MEHREX
an associate 1,261,887 35,987

13. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the two years ended
30 June 2008 and 2007 since the balance sheet date.

BB SINOKATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION {8 3 h £ 2 & A IR 4

13. RE

BEEHURBERBE_SZ/N\EFR-ZT

TtFEARAZTHEMFEIRNGHER

RIS ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 3R (F18) B F

Annual Report 2008 4 )

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share is based
on the Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders of the
Company of HK$23,442,685 (2007: profit of HK$990,465).

The basic (loss) earnings per share is based on the weighted
average number of 1,038,450,112 (2007, restated: 829,760,547)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic (loss) earnings per share for the
year ended 30 June 2007 has been retrospectively adjusted for
the effect of the rights issue completed in current year. Details
of the rights issue are set out in Note 30(c).

There was no dilution effect on the basic (loss) earnings per
share for the year ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007 as
there were no dilutive shares outstanding during the two years
ended 30 June 2008 and 2007.

The following table summarises the impact on basic (loss)
earnings per share as a result of rights issue:

BREX (BR)BRADIRERQARESE
AFE1LE1823,442,685 B L (Z 2 FLF &
7990,465/8 7T ) 5T & -

BREX(FER) BADRFACHTEBR
2 INFEF9501,038,450,112R (—BEE+EFE
5l 1 829,760,5478%) 5t & o

AR EEE—ZEZLF A A=1THLFES
BREXR (BB B 2EBRMEFHEET
EMRE . URMRFRATRER2HE - #
JR o 15 BUR M EE30(c) ©

HRBZ_ZZENFER-_ETLtFA~A=1H
IERERGEETBEEERND WA LLR
FRAZEBRER (BR) BN TESESE -

TREMEREERER (BR) BN z22E

Impact on basic
(loss) earnings per share

HEREX (BR) BRzRE

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Figures before adjustments FERNET (0.0226) 0.0016
Adjustment for the rights issues* AL IR A 2 - 0.0011
Restated T E 5 (0.0226) 0.0027

* Adjustment for two for one rights issue of shares in July 2007
(Note 30(c)).

* EBRCEELFLAZ oM -HREHAR
(MizE30(c)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. 3% (&518) 25 #@)
After 30 June 2008, the Company has the share consolidation “EENFERAZTHUE AQABHET
and rights issue as described in Notes 38(a) and 38(b) A E O R AR - 515 2 Bl E A K 5E38(a) &
respectively. 38(b) °
The following table summaries the impact on the basic loss per TREMERREBROESHEERERNSEE Y
share as a result of rights issue and share consolidation: &
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Figures before adjustments FAERMEHT (0.0226) 0.0027
Adjustment for the rights issue** AR AE 2 T 0.0082 (0.0015)
Adjustment for the share consolidation*** Fi & {3 & GF{E tH = 8 &+~ (0.0144) 0.0012
(0.0288) 0.0024
** Adjustment for one rights issue for two existing shares in August * ER=—FTNFNAZ-—H-—HRELAE
2008 (Note 38(b)). (Kf5E38(b)) °
***  Adjustment for share consolidation (Note 38(a)). o BRR S GHE L AR (FiEE38(a))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 15. EE RS REEEMNE
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven ENRENTFLE(ZEZELE: £F)
(2007: seven) directors were as follows: BEEvMewT

For the year ended 30 June 2008

ZEENEXRA=THLEE

Other emoluments

Hit &
Salaries,
allowances MPF
and other Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus contributions Total
& 28 BES
e - REMAER BRI BEEE @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B B BT
Executive directors: HITEE
Yau Chung Hong B Em 720,000 - 1,000,000 - 1,720,000
Chui Tak Keung, Duncan iR 1,800,000 - 2,000,000 24,000 3,824,000
Chow Ka Wo, Alex AR 480,000 - 200,000 - 680,000
Non-executive director: HHITES .
Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth EE® 168,000 - - - 168,000
Independent non-executive BUHFHTESE -
directors:
Lam Kwan E 78,000 - - - 78,000
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan BR # % 78,000 - - - 78,000
Shiu Siu Tao EOH 78,000 - - - 78,000
3,402,000 - 3,200,000 24,000 6,626,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2007

15. EERSREEREME @)

(a) EEM< (&)
BE-ZZtFEAXA=1THLEE

Other emoluments

Hin &
Salaries,
allowances MPF
and other  Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
e 28 BES
e R H R A BYALA BEILEE et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT B
Executive directors: HITEE:
Yau Chung Hong EEM 240,000 16,000 - - 256,000
Chui Tak Keung, Duncan BiEE 240,000 = - 24,000 264,000
Chow Ka Wo, Alex AR 240,000 - - - 240,000
Non-executive director: FHTEE .
Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth FER 120,000 - - - 120,000
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE -
directors:
Lam Kwan ME 60,000 = = = 60,000
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan PR 88 42 60,000 - - - 60,000
Shiu Siu Tao ®OH 60,000 - - - 60,000
1,020,000 16,000 - 24,000 1,060,000

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the two years ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June
2007. No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to any
director during the two years ended 30 June 2008 and 30
June 2007.

The remuneration of directors including the performance
bonus is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individual and market
trends.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EF R A 7

BE-ZZN\FRA=+tHER=-ZZtEXA
ZtHILEMF  UEEEHRRREZHEEM
e BE—ZTZNFAAZTHER=ZEL
FRA=THILEMF  HBEAEANESIHTH
BN EAME - FREMAREE 2 REHE
REEEEE -

ESME (BRANRIA DHFEMEES
BENATzZRRERHSERMERE -

Annual Report 2008 3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2007: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments

15. EERSREEREME @)

(b) EREEEME
AEELEHReFATEBE=ZR(Z2E
tF =ZR)ARRAES FEMESFE
BREX - EBWME (CETLF WR)

of the remaining two (2007: two) highest paid individuals REHALTZMEMT
were as follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances and other e RRREMER
benefits 479,500 279,000
MPF Scheme contributions MESFTEHER 32,418 18,050
511,918 297,050

The emoluments of the two (2007: two) highest paid
individuals fall in the following bands:

Emoluments bands B <& 48 5

Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0005% 5T

MEBE(CEZLF WB)ESFALTZHEE
LT 4R

Number of individuals

AB
2008 2007
SIS 12
2 2

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to
any highest paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) during the two years ended 30 June 2008 and
30 June 2007.

BE_REN\FAA=TRAR-EZTLHEAXA
=STRLEMF  BEAEAESHAL (B
EEREMES) XAREMEAME  FH
HMAREE z RBRERBBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. BE R & HE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures equipment Computers vehicles Total
HEVELE HAREE BLERB Z RE @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT

COoST BA
At 1 July 2006 RZZEXFLA—H 504,004 185,101 30,612 32,740 1,088,159 1,840,616
Additions "B 17,500 15,146 78,988 50,360 1,545,425 1,707,419
Disposals HE - (9,180) - - = (9,180)
At 30 June 2007 R-ZZE+FRA=TH

and 1 July 2007 R-ZEZtFtA—H 521,504 191,067 109,600 83,100 2,633,584 3,538,855
Additions "B 1,166,860 77,173 30,690 77,370 1,626,000 2,978,093
Written-off s (504,004) (98,864) (19,951) (16,940) = (639,759)
Disposals HE - - = = (388,000) (388,000)
At 30 June 2008 RZEBZENEXA=1H 1,184,360 169,376 120,339 143,530 3,871,584 5,489,189
ACCUMULATED RHE

DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2006 RZZZX ELA—H 163,133 53,592 9,834 13,068 298,673 538,300
Charge for the year FERFE 127,824 45,558 20,653 12,908 594,003 800,946
Eliminated on disposals  H&R%8H - (5,698) - - - (5,698)
At 30 June 2007 R-BZELFSA=TH

and 1 July 2007 R-ZEZtFEtA—H 290,957 93,452 30,487 25,976 892,676 1,333,548
Charge for the year FRITE 194,477 35,913 24,824 26,288 914,769 1,196,271
Eliminated on written-off #4444 (290,957) (48,928) (12,995) (13,992) = (366,872)
Eliminated on disposals ~ HERK - - - - (24,249) (24,249)
At 30 June 2008 R=BZENFXA=1A 194,477 80,437 42,316 38,272 1,783,196 2,138,698
CARRYING VALUES HREEE
At 30 June 2008 R-BENEXA=1H 989,883 88,939 78,023 105,258 2,088,388 3,350,491
At 30 June 2007 R-ZELFRA=TH 230,547 97,615 79,113 57,124 1,740,908 2,205,307

The carrying value of assets held under finance leases included

in the total carrying value of motor vehicles of the Group as at
30 June 2008 amounted to HK$2,088,388 (2007: HK$1,740,908).

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

AEBR-EENEAB=+tHEZAREER
BENEEREREHEAFEECEERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

RE P mRME

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R E DR 2R
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost of investment in unlisted associates R 3k E & AT 2 RE KA 4,500,000 4,513,920
Share of post-acquisition results iR 6,759,186 373,272
Impairment loss recognised ERAREEE - (13,920)
11,259,186 4,873,272
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Amount due from an associate FE Uk B & N B TR 19,378,500 12,698,510

The amount due from an associate was unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

As at 30 June 2008, the Group has interest in the following

associate:

Form of
business Class of
Name of associate structure shares held
BELRER XBERAX  HRROEH
CNI Bullion Limited Incorporated ~ Ordinary share
(“CNI Bullion”) L BER

Annual Report 2008 4 )

Place of
incorporation
and operations
A 3L

HHR

Hong Kong
B

BWEEQARFETERR  RERERER

R=BBAEAAS+A  AEBRUTEE

NEEERE
Percentage
of equity
Nominal value attributable
of issued to the Group
share capital AEH
[5:€5) E{5#%  Principal activities
RAEE ZEAL  EEEH
HK$15,000,000 30% Provision of services
15,000,000 7T on trading of gold in

Hong Kong gold market
AREEEETHSZES
BERMRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(a) The summarised unaudited financial information in respect (a)

(b)

of the Group’s associate is set out below:

RE P mRME

17. REFE QN R 2 R ()

AEEBREARN 2 REERZVBERH
ZHFEWT :

2008 2007

—EENF —EELHF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Total assets HEE 97,805,458 36,194,652

Total liabilities HmEF (60,274,839) (19,950,412)

Net assets BEEFHE 37,530,619 16,244,240

Group’s share of net assets AEEEMLEE QA

of an associate EEFE 11,259,186 4,873,272

Turnover = -1 104,860,028 40,527,978

Profit for the year REERF 21,286,380 565,510
Group’s share of results of an AEBFRNEMEE QN REE

associate for the year 6,385,914 169,653

The directors of the Company reviewed the carrying value (b)

of its interest in China Northern Enterprises Investment
Fund(s) Pte Limited (“CN Enterprises”) which ceased
business during the year ended 30 June 2006 and made

full impairment on the investment cost in 2006. The

investment cost of HK$13,920 and amount due from CN
Enterprises of HK$165,540 had been fully written off

during the year ended 30 June 2008.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION & Zx R 35 E F R A A

AXAREZTEEMAERBE =
ERNFRAZTHLEFERS &
ZChina Northern Enterprises
Investment Fund(s) Pte Limited ([CN
Enterprises ) 2% 2 IREE X EH
“EERE2RENRZHREE - REBZE
—EENEFRAZTHLEENE B
2 i 85 1% & i 7<13,9207%8 T & FEULCN
Enterprises{18165,54058 Jt ©

M A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

RE P mRME

18. LOAN RECEIVABLES 18. B RE RFKE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Convertible notes receivables (Note (a)) WEWA#IRZE (A:F(a)) - 10,000,000
Term loans (Note (b)) EHE R (H32(b) 20,220,000 10,220,000
20,220,000 20,220,000
Analysed for report purpose IR Z DA
Current assets (included in amounts REBEE (BEERES
due from investee companies) RERFRIE) 10,220,000 =
Non-current assets FRBEE 10,000,000 20,220,000
20,220,000 20,220,000
Notes: =

(a)

Annual Report 2008 4 )

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Company entered
into an agreement to subscribe a convertible note with an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$32,000,000 from Winwide
Management Limited (the “Winwide CN”). As at 30 June 2007, the
Company subscribed a convertible loan with principal amount of
HK$10,000,000. The Winwide CN carries interest at 8% per annum
and will mature on 31 March 2009. The initial conversion price
is 80% of (i) the issue price per share at which new shares were
issued to the qualified investor under the most recently completed
qualified issue or, (ii) where the most recently completed qualified
issue was in respect of the issue of securities convertible into
or exchangeable for the new share, the fixed conversion price or
fixed exchange price at which those securities may be converted
into or exchanged for new shares, as stipulated in the terms and
conditions governing such securities, during the conversion period
commencing from 4 March 2007 to 31 March 2009.

The effective interest rate of Winwide CN is 8% per annum.

(a)

BE-_ZZLFARA=THLEFE  &AQFF
Y 13 + LAEWinwide Management Limited
R 2 $% 532,000,000 T 2 AT IR E
B ((Winwide TR EHE ) - R=ZFFLEN
A=+H XARREELE510,000,000% T
Z AR E R © Winwide AJ 12 it R 15 UL 7l =
BEFE  UKR=ZBZEAF=A=+—HZ
B MERZERS ZERRREMEETE  R=
EELF=ZANAZE_ZEETNF=A=+—H
ZBREE - WS HIBRERUT 280% : (i) R
BRERRZEERBTOEERREA TR
iR 2 8RBT ER () (MRETRZEERE
BITHRBTIEBRG AL RIHIRZE )
FRRSTERSGBERHR2EELIRER

B E X HAME o

Winwide TR R 2 B F R RA8E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

18. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group has measured the Winwide CN in accordance with
HKAS 39. The debt element of Winwide CN were measured initially
at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost and classified
as convertible note receivable. The conversion option element
of Winwide CN were measured initially and subsequently at fair
value in accordance with HKAS 39 and classified as conversion
options embedded in convertible loan receivable. The fair values
conversion options embedded are carried out by Malcom &
Associates Appraisal Limited, independent valuers not connected
with the Group, and were zero both at initial date and 30 June
2007.

The convertible notes receivables had been converted into issued
share capital of Winwide Management Limited which has been
classified as available-for-sale investment of the Group during the
year ended 30 June 2008.

As at 30 June 2007, the term loan granted to Orbrich Finance
Group Limited of HK$10,220,000, in which Quidam Assets Limited
(“Quidam”) had 84% equity interest and the Group had 18.25%
equity interest in Quidam, is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per
annum for the period from 1 May 2007 to 30 April 2008 and 12%
per annum for the period from 1 May 2008 to 31 December 2008.

As at 30 June 2008, the term loan granted to Quidam was
HK$10,000,000. The term loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8%
per annum for the period from 29 June 2008 to 31 December 2009.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

18. & M K& B W I (@)
Wit - ()

(a)

(b)

(4)

REECREE B ST ERE39FHWinwide
AR ZEEEE o WinwidefT IR Z15 2
BREDATRAAENE  HERBHRA
FE A EREWRTRRKREE - Winwided]
BREBEZAGBERGRESBESHED
B3I RAEBRAAETE U5 EARK
AW TR E e SR HIRE o R A IR
BeRAREREASEEGERE B HE
fiMalcom & Associates Appraisal Limited
ETFE MAREREER=ZZLEARA
=+HBRZ-

BEZZZENERA=ZTHLEEEHHE  E
Y T 2 % Z 48 B 8 BWinwide Management
Limited 2 B 81T » WA K@ 2 Al K
ERE -

R-ZZZTELFARXA=1+H & FOrbrich
Finance Group Limited (Quidam Assets
Limited ([ Quidam ) 58 H84%R #& - M &<
£ @ FEQuidamz18.25% K ) 2 E HE K
10,220,000 TR EER - R=ZZLFHA
—HE-ZZT N\FNA=+HHBRFRES
EERR=ZZENFEA—HE=ZZNEF
T=ZA=1t—BEFFANR12EFHE -

R-ZZENFAA=1+H > EFQuidamzE
Hi & 5 %£10,000,0005 7T ° & H & A E I H
ER-—ZZENFARA-TABZE=-ZZTLE
T A=+ - BHBRFEFERETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AR HERE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted investments, at fair value BARBEIRZIELTRE
(Notes (a) and (b)) (H13E(a) B (b)) 168,536,637 56,446,836
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TR
Current RE 71,043,665 26,553,336
Non-current KRB 97,492,972 29,893,500
168,536,637 56,446,836
The movement in the change of fair value is as follows: ARBEEEBZZEERAOT :
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
As at 1 July RtHA—H 56,446,836 38,860,000
Additions BE 88,581,220 7,800,000
Disposals s (26,553,336) (6,003,000)
Increase in fair values A SEE 50,061,917 15,789,836
As at 30 June RAB=1+H 168,536,637 56,446,836

Annual Report 2008 % % BRAEZEHFMRAT  SINOKATAIYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION 61



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)
Notes:

42

19. I HERE (@)

(@) The unlisted equity securities represent investments in private

entities as at 30 June 2008 details are as follows:

Name

=L

Quidam (i)

Winwide Management Limited (ii)

1IN Network Education (BVI) Limited (iii)

King Alliance Resources Limited (iv)

Woddlock Investment Limited (v)

Easymade Group Limited (vi)

Place of
incorporation
= i

B 3L it B

British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”)
RERELZRS

BVI
RERELEHS

BVI
RERZES

BVI
REELEHS

BVI
RERZES

BVI
REELEHS

Particulars
of equity
interest held
R A
RS

Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share

HER

Ordinary share
EBER

Ordinary share
HER

Ordinary share
EBER

Ordinary share
HER

1. The fair value was arrived at with reference to the valuation

carried out at the balance sheet date by LCH (Asia-Pacific)

Surveyors Limited (“LCH”), independent valuers not

connected with the Group. LCH has appropriate qualification

and recent experience in the valuation of similar investments.

2. The fair value was estimated by directors of the Company

with reference to the market conditions and the selling price

agreed with an independent third party subsequent to the

balance sheet date (Note 38(c)).

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

Bt -

RE P mRME

(a) FETRARZEEE—ZZENFAA=TH
RIUADEZRE  FBEWT :

Acquisition
cost
WeRE AR A
HK$

7T

15,267,000

20,000,000

15,000,000

18,581,220

15,000,000

20,000,000

Fair value
A RE
HK$

BT

59,663,364"

37,829,608

20,140,764"

18,000,000"

17,902,901"

15,000,0002

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
KEEEG
REE DL

18.25%

18%

11.25%

30%

10%

14.4%

1. AREDNZEFSEHERE 2B
ERFRTHEMERLF (TRKT)

FrETREE R 2 hERE -

MELTR

BEEERKAERAFGERRERE
=44

2. DAAEHREALAFEEZEZTRRALE
HRE-—EZBYE=FEE2EBMmM M
& (P EE38(c)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) The unlisted equity securities represent investments in private
entities as at 30 June 2008 details are as follows:

(i) Quidam and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
provision of factoring and guaranty services in the PRC. No
dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2008.
The investment in Quidam has been pledged to secure the
debentures issued during the year ended 30 June 2008.

(i) Winwide Management Limited (“Winwide”) and its
subsidiaries are engaged in developing a quantitative back-
testing and real time execution and distribution platform that
identifies, tests and implements superior trading strategies
while measuring and controlling risk in the process. No
dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2008.

(iii) 1IN Network Education (BVI) Limited (“IIN Network”)
is an education content services operator to provide
comprehensive solutions for educational informatisation. No
dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2008.

(iv) King Alliance Resources Limited (“King Alliance”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in operating an exclusive
mobile lottery operation, developing other value added
services and content for their mobile service subscribers,
such as stock picking services, social networking, and
streaming media content. No dividend was received during
the year ended 30 June 2008. As the Group neither have
control nor influence on the board of directors of King
Alliance and could not participate in any financial or daily
operational decision making of King Alliance, therefore King
Alliance has been regarded as available-for-sale investment
of the Group as at 30 June 2008.

(v) Woddlock Investment Limited (“Woddlock”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in production of quality,
cultural advertisement. No dividend was received during the
year ended 30 June 2008.

(vi) Easymade Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Easymade
Group”) are principally engaged in environmental technology
and management. Easymade Group has the management and
investment expertise in the areas of environmental friendly
technologies and operations, such as low-pollution paper and
pulp manufacturing and agricultural fertilizers for the China
markets. No dividend was received during the year ended 30
June 2008.

19. T HERE (@)

Hiat - (48)

(b) FLTRABFEBZE_ZZTNFAA=TH
RBARBZRE - FBEMOT ¢

(1)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Quidam& H B A R EZR B SR
HAERERRE - RBEE-FTZNFA
BE=+HLEFEALBBBEARE - &
E_ZZ N \FRAZTHLEEHH
RQuidamz RECEIVER D BRITERE
BZER -

Winwide Management Limited
(TWinwide |) R Mt B A = = ZEREH
H—EEENR BERHTREBAE
HWEa - &5  AERETEENRS
KB &) BFET &?*%U?xéﬂwo A
BE_ZZENFAA=tTHLEE
EREVEMRRE ©

IIN Network Education (BVI) Limited
(TIIN Network ) i —RH B R#% & &
B RUEABEMNZEZEBARTE - R
BE-ZZN\EARB=1tHLEERL
EREVEMRRE ©

King Alliance Resources Limited
(TKing Alliance ]) R B A A EEH#
EBRRENTFHREZLEE - ATFHEA
ERBHMBERBERAS MR RE
ER® RRRBERABRE - REAZE=
ZZN\EARA=THILEFERLEUE
FEMRE - ARAEEBHKing Alliance
ZEBSURZHERTED /JT;F%‘E
2 82King Alliance 2 B 1§ 5k B H & & R
% » EltKing Alliancei A =ZZ )\ &FE X
B=+TH#HBERAEE 2 IHEERSE -

Woddlock Investment Limited
(TWoddlock ) & HHi B~ 5] T Z it E R
EBEXLES -RBE-ZZTZTNFA
A=1+THLFERAL|BEEMRE ©

Easymade Group Limited & E Kt /B 2 5
(TEasymadef B ]) T ERBRREF ;M
REE%5E - Easymade BN EE KRR
ERARMKREEGESTEBEEEMA
o e R E m%zﬁw%%”ﬁ’i?
REFXAEHNZE REBEZE-ZTZT/N\FAX
B=+H JJ:EEW%%LI&HYE@HEM °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 June 2008 comprise:

Fair value:

Listed securities held for trading
- listed in Hong Kong

7

=

D

20.

J
SEEE 2 MRS
-REBLD

BRAAEREBESRAEECSRMEE

REZZBZENFAA=ZTH  BRAAERERR

REEZSRAEGE
2008 2007
SIS 12
HK$ HK$
B B
24,484,446 20,756,120

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL were

determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on

the relevant exchanges at the balance sheet date.

Particulars of the major listed securities as at 30 June 2008 are

as follows:

Name

=x

Honghua Group Limited
RESBRRAA

Omnicorp Limited
MEZRERAH

Notes

K

Place of
incorporation

aF {7 A S 3t B

Cayman Islands

HEHS

Bermuda
BRE

10 SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

Particulars
of equity
interest held
BT
ERFE

Ordinary share
HEER

Ordinary share
HER

AEERAAENERRABRE2ERNEEZ
DAEDNEREERITAREREERZMEE
BB ARBERE o

REBENFARAZTHEBR LTRSS ZHE
mr

Percentage
of equity

Market value interest

as at 30 attributable
June 2008 to the Group
Acquisition R=-ZZNEF AEEEMNL
cost AH=1H B 2 1
(L4 1% ZE Batk
HK$ HK$
BT BT
10,317,500 9,045,000 0.081%
18,572,985 7,927,920 2.774%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. EAAERESRRABEEBECESRMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) (#&)

R-BENEAA=+AH  BAABERBER

REECSREERE (&)

Particulars of the major listed securities as at 30 June 2008 are
as follows: (Continued)

Percentage
of equity

Market value interest

Particulars as at 30  attributable
of equity June 2008 to the Group
Place of interest held  Acquisition R=-ZZN\F AEBEERL
Name Notes  incorporation  FiERAE cost AA=TH i 7 B 25
=t Krst 11 B 37 3t B BmFlE W B8 R AR ZhiE BAL
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prosperity International Holdings iii Bermuda Ordinary share 2,632,600 2,194,920 0.469%
(H.K.) Limited BRE EER
BEERER (F#8) BRAR
Beijing Enterprises Water Group iv Bermuda Ordinary share 1,679,540 709,500 0.159%
Limited BRE EBER
A BEBERA A
Ming Fai International Holdings v Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 1,101,685 636,840 0.061%
Limited HEHE ZER
PIEERERERA
Wing Hang Bank, Limited Vi Hong Kong Ordinary share 686,771 619,800 0.002%
KEZRITERAR BB EER
Kingsoft Corporation Limited vii Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 700,700 560,000 0.016%
SILBHEERARA Hefs EER
Get Nice Holdings Limited viii Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 953,430 530,000 0.032%
FFERERAR Hefs EER
Lung Cheong International ix Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 881,600 355,980 0.057%
Holdings Limited HERE ZER
EERFERERAR
Changan Minsheng APLL X PRC H shares 408,000 288,660 0.186%
Logistics Co., Ltd. HE H &R

EERZREVMAROABRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Honghua Group Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in research, design, manufacture setting and
maintenance of equipments for petroleum drilling and mining.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2008. According to the latest published financial statements of
Honghua Group Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
RMB4,515,279,000.

Omnicorp Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacture and sales of electronic components and product,
property holding and investment holding. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2008. According to the
latest published financial statements of Omnicorp Limited, it had
net assets value of approximately HK$345,358,000.

Prosperity International Holdings (H.K.) Limited and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading of building
materials and clinker and cement and exploration, exploitation and
processing of granite and selling of granite products. No dividend
was received during the year ended 30 June 2008. According to the
latest published financial statements of Prosperity International
Holdings (H.K.) Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$173,808,000.

Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in trading of computers and related products.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2008.
According to the latest published financial statements of Beijing
Enterprises Water Group Limited, it had net assets value of
approximately HK$201,329,000.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of amenity
products and accessories. No dividend was received during
the year ended 30 June 2008. According to the latest published
financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited, it

had net assets value of approximately HK$713,907,000.

Wing Hang Bank, Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in commercial banking and related financial services.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2008.
According to the latest published financial statements of Wing
Hang Bank, Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$10,719,096,000.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

20 BEARERBERANEEZEMEE

(#&)

Biat :

)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

CEEEERAGAREME L ARSAMER
BB  BE > BE - HENRE - REZE
—EENFARAZ=THIEFERLEKEREM
RE - BREEZEEEHERASRITHTIR 26
Bikk  HEERFENH ARYE4,515,279,000

JC °

MEZRERAAREMBRARDETEREE

THRERERE MEZRRREER - RE
E-EZEN\FAA=THLEFERNLEEERE
ARE - REMEERERQ B RO T2
MK - HEEFELS345,358,000/8 T °

EEEBRER (FB)ERAARAHNEAR
TERBEEERERAMRKRE  URER
AREMIEEERFEELEHEER - REB
E-ZZNFARA=THILEFERILERER
EARE - REERBEREZR (FB)ERD
AHAHTIScMBHR REEFENR
173,808,000/ T °

tEABEEARAAREMNBARDEERS
EEEMREBER REE-ZZNFAA
=+t RLEFERLEKEEMERE - R
KBEEERA BRI T 2B HIHRR - H
EEFELN 201,329,000/ T °

PEERERERARARENBAREZERS
RERFHEEEAMRES - AEE=ZZN
FRAZTHLEEERLERBEMRKS - R
ERIERERER A R R &I 2 M ®R
x> HEEFEXNAT13,907,000% 7T °

KZRITERAAREMBRARDETEREEHE
RITRAEBETBRE - RBEEZE-ZFZNFAA
=t ALEFERLEREEMBRE < RIEXT
RITBRABREPFIH 2B BER HEE
F1E % %10,719,096,0005% 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vii) Kingsoft Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in research, development and distribution of software
products and provision of online game services. No dividend
was received during the year ended 30 June 2008. According
to the latest published financial statements of Kingsoft
Corporation Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
RMB1,137,399,000.

(viii) Get Nice Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in provision of financial services, including securities
dealing and broking, futures and options broking, securities margin
financing, money lending, corporate finance services, brokerage of
mutual funds and insurance-linked investment plans and products
and property development and holding. An interim dividend
of HK$0.02 dividend per share was received during the year
ended 30 June 2008. According to the latest published financial
statements of Get Nice Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of
approximately HK$3,013,918,000.

(ix) Lung Cheong International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in developing, engineering, manufacture
and sales of toys, moulds and materials. No dividend was received
during the year ended 30 June 2008. According to the latest
published financial statements of Lung Cheong International
Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$562,738,000.

(x) Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in rendering of transportation of finished
vehicles, supply chain management for automobile components
and parts and transportation of non-vehicle commodities
services. A final dividend of RMBO0.08 dividend per H shares
was received during the year ended 30 June 2008. According to
the latest published financial statements of Changan Minsheng
APLL Logistics Co. Ltd, it had net assets value of approximately
RMB490,698,000.

The Group has pledged the financial assets at FVTPL of
HK$24,484,446 (2007: HK$20,756,120) to secure the margin
payable granted to the Group.

Since 30 June 2008, due to the financial crisis in the Hong Kong
stock market, the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL held
by the Group further decreased by HK$15,149,300 up to 29
October 2008.

20 BEARERBERANEEZEMEE

(&)
Biat :

(vii) RUBHERATREKEA R EZEZHBHE
ROBRHERRIBEE LHEBRE - REBZE
—EFZNEXA =18 I FE R EKEREM
BRE - BIESILEHERA SRR 26
Bk HEERFENAARYE1,137,399,000

JC °

EHERERAAREMNBAR ZEREESD
RUSHRY CFEIFEERKLRSE B
ERBREEERE BERFEHE - B
TEMERY  EEESRRBEBRETS
REMZELRYE  URUERREREE R
BE-ZZ \EARAA=ZTHLEFEHBEWR
WA HREER0.02E T - RIBAFERER
RNEABCEHT B 2B BH/RER  HAEEFENR
3,013,918,0007% 7T °

(viii

=

EEBERERATRENBATNEERSE
ME -EHARYHZHE IRREH -RE
Z-ZZN\EXA=+HLFERLEKRRE
IR S - RIZEEEBERIZERER A R HEEHT
BB EHRK HEEFEN A562,738,000
BT e

(ix)

(x) EERREEVRBOERATDARIEMEAR
TERERUREERARYE SERMBRT
- RSB RIS AN JE S B R RS o
REBEE-ZZN\EAA=THILFEHBHEW
BARH R EERHBARY0.08T - RIBEE
RZREVRRHDERD BRI TR 285
ik HEEFEN A ARY490,698,0007T °

AEEEEFARAABREZERAREZEHM
& 24,484,446 (==L F 1 20,756,120
BRUVEALEEEREMRES ZER-

B-TZENEXA=Z1THEE HREBERE
TmEHESREK  AEEMBERAAE
REZRARECSREEZARNERER
—EENFTA-ZTNABARLEE-THD
15,149,30038 T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21. ANRE - RERHEMBERKE

RECEIVABLES

2008 2007
—BENF —EELHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments 59,015 72,500
Deposits 416,586 195,217
Other receivables H b fE 5k 18 16,116,799 25,777,154
16,592,400 26,044,871
Less: Impairment loss recognised W ERAERR
for the year (13,364,235) -
3,228,165 26,044,871
The movement in the impairment of other receivables is as HihEWHRIBZ RESBOT !
follows:
2008 2007
—E2ENE —EELF
HK$ HK$
BT 7B TT
At 1 July KtA—H - =
Impairment loss recognised FACEAREESIE
for the year 13,364,235 -
At 30 June RA<B=+H 13,364,235 -

Included in other receivables are the following advances to third

parties of the Group:

(a) Consideration receivables in relation to the disposals
of available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$2,400,000 (2007: HK$6,500,000) from independent
third parties, are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. During the year ended 30 June 2008, impairment
loss of approximately HK$1,300,000 (2007: Nil) has been
recognised.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

Htt YR ERET IR TFAEEE =128

E
TA -

(a)

HETHEEREMERBLIE=R
Z X 182,400,000 T (ZFEZ £ F :
6,500,000/ T) » AEIEA - REREBR
ZREE-RBE_ZTZENFRA=T
BEFEHB ERIABEBEEN S
1,300,000 T (==t F : &) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in other receivables are the following advances to third
parties of the Group: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Annual Report 2008 4 )

Advance of approximately HK$4,744,000 (2007:
HK$2,012,000) to independent third parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. During the year
ended 30 June 2008, impairment loss of approximately
HK$3,864,000 (2007: Nil) has been recognised.

Advance of approximately HK$2,500,000 (2007:
HK$1,933,000) to an independent third party, is secured by
personal guarantee from an independent third party, bears
interest at 8% (2007: 8%) per annum and repayable within
one year. During the year ended 30 June 2008, impairment
loss of approximately HK$1,800,000 (2007: Nil) has been
recognised.

Advance of approximately HK$5,000,000 (2007:
HK$5,000,000) to an independent third party, is secured by
personal guarantee from an independent third party, bears
interest at 12% (2007: 12%) per annum and repayable
within one year. During the year ended 30 June 2008,
impairment loss of approximately HK$5,000,000 (2007: Nil)
has been recognised.

Interest receivables of approximately HK$1,401,000
(2007: HK$600,000) from independent third parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
During the year ended 30 June 2008, impairment loss
of approximately HK$1,401,000 (2007: Nil) has been
recognised.

Margin receivables of HK$2,564 (2007: HK$973,884) are
generated from brokage business, aged less than one
month and bear interest rate ranged from 0.25% to 2.75%
(2007: 2.25% to 2.8%) per annum for the year ended 30
June 2008.

As at 30 June 2007, advances of approximately
HK$6,810,000 to independent third parties, are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The amount has
been fully recovered during the year ended 30 June 2008.

As at 30 June 2007, advance of approximately
HK$1,651,600 to an independent third party, is secured by
personal guarantee of the shareholder of that independent
third party, bears interest at range of 8% per annum and
repayable within one year. The amounts have been fully
recovered during the year ended 30 June 2008.

RE P mRME

21. AANRIE - RERH A ERKE @

Htt W EBE TR TFAEEE=1 22

=k -
FA -

(b)

(&

MTEYE=T 2EE4,744,0008 T

—ZZ+ 42,012,000 7T) ' BEK
e RERAZRZEREERE NEBE-ZEZF
NERA=ZTHLEFEHE  EEEZM
EEHE#%3,864,0008 T (=L 5F:
) o

BT -RBBYE=728542,500,000
BT (ZEZ£F :1,933,000/8 T) -
ARBUE=FRMEBAERZER &
FRZIE (ZZZLF :8E)FHRE &
R-—FABEE REBEZE-ZZNF XA
=tHIEFERR  SRIABESENS
1,800,000 T (ZBZ£F : ) o

WY —BBIULE=H 2E3#5,000,000
B (ZZZ L4 :5,000,00087T) * A&
BYS=FREHEEAERZER &EF
MEBRE(ZEZLF :12E)5tE &
R—FERNEE - RBEE=ZFZENEAXA
=T HIEFEHE CRIABRESELS
5,000,000/ T (ZEZE+F : ) o

W B % =5 2% 5 41,401,000 5T

—ZZ+F :600,000&T)  HEIK
- RERAZREREERE RBE-ZEZF
NERA=ZTHLEFEHE SR
EEE#A51,401,0008 T (=L 5F:
) o

BE-ZZN\FAA=THLFE XA
RELALHEK 22,5648 (ZFBFLF !
973,884 8 L) BIWREE > lRERD N —
BA  FFREA02EE2.75E F%E (=
EZ+F 225EF28E) °

R-EBEZLtEANA=1TH HRTFBEIE=
B 2 #30496,810,00058 7T - B EIK I
GRERERERER - BEARECHKREZE
—EEN\FEFARA=THLEFEHBEE2E
W e

R-BEZLtEANA=1TH HF—BEIL
E=H 28 5#1,651,6008 T BB
BYE=F 2 BRIEMREAERZKER
REFRSEFE  AR—FREE-HF
BRECREZ-_ZEZ/N\EAA=1H
IFEEHEE2HKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

22.

23.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM INVESTEE COMPANIES
As at 30 June 2008, the amount of HK$10,220,000 (2007: Nil) is
due from a subsidiary of Quidam is unsecured, bears interest at
12% per annum for the period from 1 May 2008 to 31 December
2008. The amount is repayable on 31 December 2008. The
remaining balances of HK$4,724,723 (2007: HK$861,000) is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 30 June 2007, the amounts are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Amounts due from the related companies pursuant to Section
161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as below:

RE P mRME

22. BRRESREQNFZHIE

R=ZZFZNFXA=1+H ERQuidam—=x
Fff B 2 B 2 F1E10,220,00058 T (ZEZF
FIE)ABEKAE R-ZZ/\FHA—HZ
—EE)\F+A=+-HHBRFEFE12E
R BEREER-_ZENFET_A=1+—
HEE - 88%84,724,7238B T (Z 22 L F :
861,000 ) REIEF - R ERERERE
%o

ZELFEARA=ZTH EEREAEE

23. ENBEQXRRIE
ERFEARET  RERERERERE -
RIEBEFBAAKRHIE161BIEZEWEERQ A
MEWTF -
Maximum
balances

outstanding

Name of related company Interested director during the year 2008 2007

BEATEE BREERcEE FRARSZREELER —EENF —EELEF

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

CNI Financial Holdings Limited Yau Chung Hong 1,100 1,100 100
B

CNI Securities Limited Yau Chung Hong 12,300 12,300 9,700
FBm

CNI Assets Management Limited Yau Chung Hong 580,000 - 580,000
Em

13,400 589,800

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

24. BANK BALANCES 24. RITHEER
Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits of RITEREREREBTHSANEGT B ZRHRT
HK$7,689,941 (2007: HK$8,304,319) at prevailing market rate. 17 77,689,941 5t (Z=Z t F : 8,304,319
BIT) ©
The Group’s bank balances that are denominated in currencies AEBUBEREEERE 2 IEEB U EHRE
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities SIEZRATARRIT ¢

are as follows:

2008 2007

—EBENF —EELHF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

United States dollars EYL 151 131

British pounds HEE 284 283
25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HttENREAREEA

(a) Included in other payables and accruals of HK$10,126,340 (a) H b 7RE & ESZE H10,126,340/8
(2007: HK$3,136,698) represented margin payable of which T (ZZZ+LF : 3,136,6988 7t) BIEE
are generated from brokage business, aged less than one E-EENEFRAZTHLEERBR
month and bore interest rate ranged from 9.5% to 13.75% ERGEEBZENRES  RRIN—
(2007: 10.5% to 11.17%) per annum for the year ended 30 @A FRNEAEISE1ITSE(ZZEZ L
June 2008. F 1 10.5Z1117F)

(b) Included in other payables and accruals of HK$3,500,000 (b) HEfbpE{SFRIE R FEST & F3,500,0005% T
(2007: Nil) represented consideration payable for —ZZ+F &) 8FEWEKIng Alliance
acquisition of King Alliance. The amount is interest-free ZEARE - BEAREARERERER
and repayable on demand. 838 -

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 26. B EERIE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on ZEREEKF RERBERERERE -

demand.

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 27. ERBEE QAT RIE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on ERFREARET REREREREE -

demand.

Annual Report 2008  # BREFREAMAT  SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION 11
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28. DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2008, the amounts represented debentures
issued to independent third parties. HK$9,000,000 which are
unlisted, secured by the available-for-sale investment, interest
bearing at 12% per annum and repayable within one year.
HK$1,000,000 are unlisted, unsecured and interest bearing at
12% per annum.

As at 30 June 2007, the amounts represented debentures
issued to independent third parties during the year, which
are unlisted, unsecured, interest bearing at rates ranged from
12% to 13% per annum and repayable within one year. Based
on the supplementary agreement dated 10 October 2007
signed with one of the debenture holders, the maturity date of
HK$1,000,000 debenture has been extended to 31 December
2008.

All debentures are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

28. EHER

RZBENERA=TH ZERERBETT
BYE=F ZEREE - E 9,000,000 T 5
FLEH - AAEEEREERER  REFIZE
122EFFERER —FAEE 1,000,000
TRFLT  BEARREMNEI12EFTE ©

RZZFEZELFEARA=1TH ZEREEFR
BOFBIF=F2EEE > NIk L 8K
- BAE12Z1IEFERER—FRERE
RER—ZZLF+ATHEER—FEEF
BB AR 2@ = 0 1,000,000 7t &~
AR ERE-EENF+_A=1+—
E| o

FrEEEREL LB TIE -
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29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The lease term is ranging from 3 to 5 years. For the year

ended 30 June 2008, the average effective borrowing rate was

5.15% (2007: 9%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed at the

contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and

no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental

payments.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

29. MEMH A EE

RE P mRME

HEARIESF - BE-ZEE/N\FAA=THL
FE G PHEREERSEF515E (ZFF
tH:9E) AERSHNBHPEE - 2HHEE
PEZRETEREERI BT IRAEEMNRE

B

Minimum lease

Present value of

minimum lease

payments payments
BREHAEXNRE BREHREXNRBZRE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE C"EBTLHF —EENE —ETLHF
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amounts payable under finance RMERNT 2 BN
leases: FIE ¢
Within one year —F R 943,209 590,808 779,564 474,576
More than one year but ZR—FEFRZ
not more than two years AW E 825,164 646,073 680,208 518,125
More than two years but ZRMFEETZS
not more than three years R=F 479,240 350,628 386,111 275,000
More than three years but ZR=FEFZ
not more than four years pry = 58,438 409,066 45,834 320,833
2,306,051 1,996,575 1,891,717 1,588,534
Less: Future finance charges B RREEER (414,334) (408,041) N/ATEH N/ATE A
Present value of lease obligations % &IE ZHE 1,891,717 1,588,534 1,891,717 1,588,534
Less: Amount due within B AR —FRER
one year shown under It 54657 &
current liabilities BEZHIE (779,564) (474,576)
Amount due after one year —FZINBEERE 1,112,153 1,113,958

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by

the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

Finance leases are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Annual Report 2008 4 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #Z—

ZENFRA=ZTHILLFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
Number of shares Amount
RAEAE -]
HK$
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EERSREEET BT
Authorised: EE
At 1 July 2006 RIZEZRFLHA—H 200,000,000 2,000,000
Increase on 21 July 2006 —EERELAZ+—HZEM 300,000,000 3,000,000
Increase on 31 May 2007 “EELFERA=+T—HAZEM 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 R-EZELFRA=ZTHR
—ETtF+tA—H 1,500,000,000 15,000,000
Increase on 19 December 2007 FELF+ZATABEZEMN 8,500,000,000 85,000,000
At 30 June 2008 R-ZEENEARA=1+H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
At 1 July 2006 RIEZERFELHA—H 114,640,909 1,146,409
Issue of shares by bonus issue (Note (a)) DBTARABITRG (M (a)) 416,822,727 4,168,227
Issue of shares by placement (Note (b)) UBERXBITRG (HE (b)) 72,900,000 729,000
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 R-BELEAA=THE=ZZEtE+LHA—H 604,363,636 6,043,636
Issue of shares by rights issue (Note (c)) LA F X BT (B3 (c)) 302,181,818 3,021,818
Issue of shares by placement (Note (d)) URERXBITRG (#H(d)) 325,800,000 3,258,000
At 30 June 2008 R-ZEENFARA=1H 1,232,345,454 12,323,454

Notes:

Mt -

(a)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting on 21 July 2006, 114,640,909 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted on 27 July 2006 as
fully paid by way of one for one bonus issue in respect of which
an amount of HK$1,146,409 standing to the credit of the share
premium account was applied. The bonus shares rank pari passu

in all respects with the then existing shares.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting on 31 May 2007, 302,181,818 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted on 5 June 2007 as
fully paid by way of one for one bonus issue in respect of which
an amount of HK$3,021,818 standing to the credit of the share
premium account was applied. The bonus shares rank pari passu

in all respects with the then existing shares.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZ F ER EFR

(a)

WFF_??AitH T-HRITZRE
BRASLBBZEBRBRARR R-ZBTARF
+ B =++tH 114,640,9095% & i% M {20.01
BLIZHREBRUA-—B—ARNRT2AEXT
BB RET SREARDEERZERSE
1,146,409/8 7T c AARER HEHEERF ZHEER
BEBERZ AL

RER-—ZZTLFEREA=T—HETZER
BRAASLBB2EBRBARR R-ZTtHF
AN A A A 0 302,181,8180% = R ™ {50.0158 7T
PHREBERA-—B-ANBITZ2ARXFA
BERET PRBARGRERZERSE
3,021,818 T c AREE HHEERZRER
HEERZ Y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Annual Report 2008 4 )

Under a placing agreement signed on 9 August 2006, 22,900,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were placed at HK$0.4 per share.
10,900,000 and 12,000,000 shares were issued and allotted on 17
August 2006 respectively to Mr. Mak Tai Wo, and independent third
party, and Eftpos Ltd., whose ultimate beneficial owner was a then

shareholder of the Company.

On 3 May 2007, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited in relation to the
placing of the placing shares. 50,000,000 placing shares at the
placing price of HK$0.28 per placing share. The proceeds from the
placing were approximately HK$14,000,000.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting on 22 June 2007, 302,181,818 ordinary shares
of HK$0.18 each were issued and allotted on 23 July 2007 as
fully paid by way of two for one rights issue in respect of which
an amount of HK$51,370,909 standing to the credit of the share
premium account was applied. The rights shares rank pari passu in

all respects with the then existing shares.

Pursuant to a placing agreement signed on 23 August 2007,
120,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were placed at
HK$0.18 per share which issued and allotted on 27 September
2007. The proceeds from the placing were approximately
HK$21,744,000.

On 28 January 2008, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited in
relation to the placing of the placing shares. 205,000,000 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.07 per placing share were
issued and allotted on 22 February 2008. The proceeds from the
placing were approximately HK$12,300,000.

All the new shares issue rank pari passu in all respects with the

then existing shares.

30. R4 (@)
Wit - ()

(b)

(d)

RIER-ZZERENBNBETZEEwHR
22,900,000 R B IRE{E0.01 B T2 EBRIZE
RO4ABRERE  R_ZZXENA+LtBESH
21T % E %10,900,000% 52 12,000,000 % A% 13
FEARMEE BILE=7) KEftpos Ltd. (E
BREZHEARERDNTERZRR) °

R-ZBZ+LFERA=H  AATEHBERE
REERAFATLERER R AEEBEREES
{BES R E & K 190.287% Jt & £50,000,0008% F
ERH - BEMBRIEL 514,000,000 T ©

BRER-ZETLERA-+-AETZRRE
HAGLERBCERARR  R-TZLHF+L
A=+=H" 302,181 818 BE L ERIEES
BRO.18B T U=t — Rz HF = F UM K%
17 W RE ARG GEER 2 #EREE51,370,909
BT HBEROAESFARERZRERNE
BRZ i o

BRER-ZZLtFENA-F+=BFT2RE
1% # » 120,800,000/% & i% M {50.0178 Tt 2 &
BRIZEROASEIRE  WR_-ZZtFAN
A+ tHBTREZ REMESRELNS
21,744,000% T °

RZZZNFE-—B=-+N\H KADFAEH
BERERBERADTLBRERZ > &
PERARBEESREERH.07TELTRE
205,000,000 R B ERH » TR =B NF=
A-+-B#TRER BREMESRELNR
12,300,00058 T °

FAERTzHREE T HEERZ2REERN =
BEEHAL -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by all of the then
shareholders of the Company on 30 September 2003 (the
“Adoption Date”), the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the directors of the
Company may, at their absolute discretion, invite any employee
(whether full-time or part time, including any executive
director), any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors), any supplier of goods or services,
any customer and any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group to
the maximum of 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
commencement of listing of shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange and subject to renewal with shareholders’
approval.

The Scheme became unconditional upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options to any eligible
participant in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted must not represent more than 10% of the nominal
amount of all the issued shares of the Company (the “10%
Limit”) as at the date on which trading in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange first commenced. The
Company may seek approval from its shareholders in a general
meeting to refresh the 10% Limit at any time in accordance with
the Listing Rules. The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

31. BRERT &

AABRCRBEHZBERRRR-ZZT=FN
A=1tH (HRMEH]) BB EHRERRA
RERAERT 8 (T%&T8)) - RIEBEZFTE - AAF
EST2ENRABEMNES (TREBAR
B BREEMAHITES)  EAFATES
(BEBYFITES) FNERIRB 24
R - FAEFREMEOASERMAHE - M
BRRHBRMEZATHER  ERBRE
URBARNBRE » LREEFDTDRONER
Frbite EHE HEBITRO10% 2 KM - ME
HAFRRZHHE -

ZATBE R AR ARDEBR A L HRRBE
RAF - BRIFEESHIIERT - BRIZFH BRI
W HETM0FPAREMR

RIBEZETEAEM12ER A RTTFEES
B2EEZRSRMOEE JIUARQ TR EME
BEBTROZI1%AR - BEAEERSHE
BE—SHEHBBRREHZBREEESTRRE
RIBERAE ERER S A#EST - BITFES T2
TREEREMmMARETUARTROZEH
TEBAAATAROABEIMETRZE A
RABMESBTROEEZ10% ([10%2 £
PRI o RATHERE TR BERERFH
BRRRBRAE EFEHZ10%2 LR - WEFE
ERBEZGETFREZAEBTFEFEREZR
SHE > DEERESETERAATRED
BITRH30%EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. B EFE (|

Annual Report 2008 4 )

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, are subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a proposed grantee
of the share options). In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to the
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date of the offer of
the grant. The grant of share options is effective upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
share options, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the share options;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in the prospectus
of the Company dated 8 October 2003.

At 30 June 2008 and up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, no share options have been
granted to the directors or employees of the Company under
the Scheme since the Adoption Date.

BAARES  THASREERRIBES
BEABHEALREERE BSBIEY
TES (TEEREBREARBAZEMEL
FHTES)MBERFAET M @ERA
AFrERRABUFHTEESSIHESHZ
B2 A LR EBBARDAREMA12(E B
HAEAREE ZTRH 20.1% ; SEE (R
BAAARORBZEBH 2 RHEFTHE) BB
5,000,000/8 T 2 EfAIERESE » EERRR
BETmBRARRRAS L ERS AET -

REBREZZONK L AHET28R 2 HIR
REM BREZRERARAZN1IETZ
SHANERENER - BREZTEETIH
ESE ETSERTISEZBRSE()E
RERKZBH (ZALEARRZ ) BXME
ARERAFEADBRD 2 W E ; (i) B
BRERH M RERS BBXME AR
BRAFEFEADRARD 2 FHWHE ; K(iii)
RRAFRAD ZHIE °

BT BE— L 2HBERA QA T A
HR-EZE=F+ANEZBRERPHEE -

BERMBHUR  REZEZENFARA=ZTHK
BEAGSUBBR2AERH  BEBEZX
SEAAAR2ESHESRBEMBRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group disposed of its

entire interests in Intellect Enterprise Limited (“IEL”) and CNI

Consultants Limited (“CNI Consultants”).

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were

as follows:

RE P mRME

32. HEKMEB AT
BE-ZZE N \EAAZ+HLEER X
& @ H £ H RIntellect Enterprise Limited
(F'EL ) 2CNI Consultants Limited ([ CNI
Consultants |) 2 2 & #E % ©

ZEMBARARNHEERAZEEFENT :

CNI
IEL Consultants Total
e
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Net assets disposal of: FrHEEEFE
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 13,063,336 - 13,063,336
Deposits and other receivables ek EtEWEIE 63,500 = 63,500
Investment revaluation reserve released REEHEE
on disposal of available-for-sale RERBHRE
investment B (1,163,336) - (1,163,336)
11,963,500 - 11,963,500
Gain on disposal HEZ W= 1,617,720 100 1,617,820
Total consideration B 13,581,220 100 13,581,320
Satisfied by: (NE7V:E-
Available-for-sale investment (Note) AHEHERE (M) 18,581,220 = 18,581,220
Amounts due to directors A EERIE - 100 100
Consideration payable BARE (3,500,000) - (3,500,000)
Cash paid EAES (1,500,000) - (1,500,000)
13,581,220 100 13,581,320
Net cash outflow arising from disposal: HEMEEZRS
T FEE
Cash paid EfRE 1,500,000 - 1,500,000

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 30 June

2008 had no significant impact on the turnover, results and cash

flows of the Group.

84
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Note:

RE P mRME

32. HEME QA (@

On 19 October 2007, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale

and purchase agreement with an independent third party (the “Buyer”)

in relation to the disposal of the entire issued share capital of IEL,
which held 3.04% interest in Four Gold OG Limited (“Four Gold”), plus a
cash consideration of HK$5,000,000 to the Buyer, in exchange for 30%

interest in issued share capital of King Alliance.

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Group disposed of its

entire interests in Fairwood Capital Inc. The net assets of the

subsidiary at the date of disposal were as follows:

R :

RZZZLF+ATIAB ADFA—XHEAFHE
BIE=FTEBEANTLEEWHSE AREHELE
IELZ ZEE TR A (&2 a1 BFour Gold OG
Limited ([ Four Gold]) 23.04%f %) » MR EH X
{131 £ X (85,000,000 5T - LA HiKing AllianceE
BT AR Z30%E % ©

BE-ZELEAA=THLEER A5
i & H FAFairwood Capital Inc.2 & ZpH#E % o
ZHBARREEER 2EEFAENT :

2007
—EELHF
HK$
BT

Net assets disposal of: PR EEEFE
Available-for-sale investment HHEERE 6,000,000
Gain on disposal HEZ W= 500,000
Total consideration BIE 6,500,000

Satisfied by: FHF -

Consideration receivables EWAE 6,500,000

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 30 June 2007

had no significant impact on the turnover, results and cash

flows of the Group.

Annual Report 2008 4 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(c)

(d)

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group entered
into finance leases arrangements in respect of plant and
equipment with a total capital value at the inception of the
leases of HK$1,000,000 (2007: HK$1,375,000).

On 19 October 2007, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with the Buyer in
relation to the disposal of the entire issued share capital
of IEL, which held 3.04% interest in Four Gold, plus a cash
consideration of HK$5,000,000 to the Buyer, in exchange
for 30% interest in issued share capital of King Alliance.
Net assets disposed of IEL in exchange for issued share
capital of King Alliance was HK$11,963,500.

The convertible notes receivables of HK$10,000,000 had
been converted into issued share capital of Winwide which
has been classified as available-for-sale investment of the
Group during the year ended 30 June 2008.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group has
disposed of a motor vehicle with carrying value of
HK$363,751 and together with the respective obligation
under finance lease of HK$316,663 to a related company.
Loss on disposal of motor vehicle of HK$47,088 arose.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZ F ER EFR

3B.ETEHFRERS

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BE_ZZEN\FAA=ZTHLEEER K
EERBERRFETIRERNZE &
BEHERREBERENRGER 2RERES

1,000,000/8 7T (=FF £ £ : 1,375,000
BIT) °
R=—ZZtF+A+HIA  XAF—FR

MEAREERTVEEHZE ADE
BHEIELZEHERTRA (ZATF
BFour GoldZ3.04% %) » WEEH X
1+ € X 85,000,0005% 7T - Ll BKing
AllianceB #1TR 7R 230%E & - AR
King Alliance 2 2 17 IR A< T i & ZIELE
EFE 511,963,500 7T ©

FEU AT A Z=4510,000,00058 L E Ein A
Winwide2 BB TIRA » TREBZE-TZ
NERB=ZTBELFERASEATEER
ZAHEERSE -

REBE-ZZNEAA=1THLEFEER

REEKREEAR363,751B T2 AHE
EEEmMEHNRIES16,663EBTHET
BEAT - HESREELEEE47,0888

io
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

M. FHAEALTRBAERS

TRANSACTIONS
(@) During the year, the Group entered into the following (a) A AEEHEBEATRBEEHETZ
transactions with related parties and connected parties: RXBWT :
2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
Notes HKS$ HK$
btat BT 7B TT
Coqueen Company Limited Coqueen Company Limited
(“Coqueen”) (FCoqueen )
Interest expense to ) S5 2 i 56,995 66,155
Loan advance from Fr{E# R i 640,000 640,000
Interest payable to BAFR i 483,673 426,678
Fook Lam Moon (Kowloon) B (L) BRAERAE
Restaurant Limited (“Fook Lam (FrE w9 (huge) D)
Moon (Kowloon)”)
Interest paid ENFE ii - 165,000
Loan advance from FrE 2R i - 3,000,000
Interest payable to AR ii - 89,694
Amount due to FEAFFRIE ii - 19,160
Chiu & Partners TR o 5B SRR = 5 T
Legal fees paid e EEER iii 553,330 =
Amount due to FEAFFRIE iii 282,200 282,200
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited BIZZEZEESE (M)
BRAFA
Investment management fee paid ENREEEE iv - 525,000
Standard Chartered Bank BITR1T
Custodian fee paid ENEEE v 46,758 62,295
Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan, KRB ZHITES
an executive director of the mEEmAE ([REE£]D
Company (“Mr. Chui”)
Amount due to FE{F 518 vi 150,577 53,845
Mr. Yau Chung Hong, an executive ZARATZHITES
director of the Company EEMEE (TEEED
(“Mr. Yau”)
Amount due to T FRE vii 484,258 361,358
Consideration receivable i £CNI Consultants
for disposal ZEARE
of CNI Consultants vii 100 -
Annual Report 2008 % BRAPEREGRAT  SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties and connected parties:

(Continued)

CNI Securities
Amount due from

CNI Financial Holdings Limited
Amount due from
Sale proceeds from disposal of
plant and equipment

CNI Assets Management Limited
(“CNI Asset”)
Amount due from
Amount due to

Four Gold
Investment in Four Gold
Amount due from

Quidam
Amount due from
Loan advance to

Ferndene
Interest income

Kwong Fai Motor Company
Limited
Interest income

Tripod Management Limited
(“Tripod”)

Investment management fee paid

Amount due to

IIN Network
Amount due from

CNI Securities

W FRIE

CNI Financial Holdings Limited
W IR
HEBRERREZHE

PR FRE

CNI Assets Management Limited
(TCNI Asset )
FE WK 1R
FE A+ 5038

Four Gold
MAFour GoldZ & &
FEUW R IE

Quidam
A&
FriE# R

Ferndene

F 2 A

Kwong Fai Motor Company
Limited
FIE WA

BEKEEEARAT
TS&]D
ENfREEEE
FE TR E

IIN Network
FE WK 1R

88 SN0 KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION 4 2 o 2 153 45 IR 44 5

(a)

M. FAEALTRBAERS (®)

RE P mRME

FR AEEHEBEEATREERETZ
REWT : (&)

Notes

BaE

viii

viii

viii

Xi
Xi

xii

Xiii

Xiv
Xiv

XV

2008
—BBNE
HK$

b

12,300

1,100

316,663

20,000

70,000

10,000,000

1,052,110
40,000

294,095

2007
—EELE
HK$

B

9,700

100

580,000

11,900,000

70,000

74,535

573,859

48,678

45,000
30,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

RE P mRME

M. FAEALTRBAERS (®)

(a)

Annual Report 2008 4 )

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties and connected parties:
(Continued)

(a) FR  AEERBENLTRBEELETZ

REWT : (&)

2008 2007
—EENE —E2E2LF
Notes HK$ HK$
Jiok=d BT BT
Orbrich Finance Group Limited Orbrich Finance Group Limited
(“Orbrich Finance”) (F'Orbrich Finance )
Loan advance to Fr{E 2% Xvi 10,220,000 10,220,000
Amount due from FEUR SR8 XVi 2,027,094 =
Interest income from FE U A XVi 885,733 607,882
Interest receivables FE W F B XVi - 716,466
Woddlock Woddlock
Amount due from FE W FhE Xvii 2,299,420 =
Winwide Winwide
Amount due from FEUR TR 18 Xviii 104,114 =
Interest income from F 2 U A xviii 753,973 =
Service fee received 2R E xviii 105,000 =
Notes: et -

()

(if)

(ii)

Mr. Chui and/or his associates have beneficial interests in
Coqueen. The loan granted to the Group by Coqueen is
unsecured, repayable within one year and bears interest
at Hong Kong Prime Rate + 2.5% (2007: Hong Kong Prime
Rate + 2.5%) per annum. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the loan advanced at 30 June 2007 was
approximate to the corresponding carrying amount. The
outstanding balances have been fully settled subsequent to

the balance sheet date.

Mr. Chui and/or his associates have beneficial interests in
Fook Lam Moon (Kowloon). As at 30 June 2007, the loan
granted to the Group by Fook Lam Moon (Kowloon) is
unsecured, repayable within one year and bears interest at
5.5%.

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth, non-executive director of the
Company has beneficial interests in Chiu & Partners. The
amount due to Chiu & Partner is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

(if)

(i)

BREER SHEBBALTERES
CoqueenZ 35 ° Coqueen(d] 78 5 B %
HZERERRA - BN —FREERIZ
EBREBRFNERMEE(ZEFTLF &
BREIFEM2.EE) 2 FFRTE -
AABRESERA R—TZTLFEARA=T
ARBRERZAREEEHEREE
HE REELEHRENEEALTHE

=
A °

BAEER /REMBATEREGEEN
(NLgE) 2EH - R-_FFLERA=T
B BEM (WE) AXEERHE ZERK
TEER AR —FREERRSSEZ
FRRGE o

ARBFHTEETHRLLEERESR
AR e SEIREMEHT 2R - fE
TR e SEBREMBBAZANED
HIEH R ERARERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

M. FAEALTRBAERS (®)

(a)

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties and connected parties:
(Continued)
Notes:

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Pursuant to investment management agreement dated
10 May 2004 (the “Investment Management Agreement”)
entered into between the Company and Guotai Junan Assets
(Asia) Limited (the “Investment Manager”), the Investment
Management agreed to provide the Company with investment
management services (excluding general administrative
services) for a period of two-year commencing on 1 June
2004.

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the
Investment Manager is entitled to a fixed investment
management fee of HK$600,000 per annum or management
fee equivalent to 1.25% per annum of the net asset value as
at the immediately preceding Valuation Day payable monthly
in Hong Kong dollars in advance on the basis of the actual
number of days in the relevant calendar months over a year
of 365 days. The Investment Management Agreement had
been terminated by the Investment Manager in writing with
effective from 16 May 2007.

Pursuant to a custodian agreement dated 6 October 2003
entered into between the Company and Standard Chartered
Bank (the “Custodian”), the Custodian agreed to provide
securities custodian services to the Company including the
safe custody of the Company’s securities and the settlement
of the securities of the Company, the collection of dividends
and other entitlements on behalf of the Company. The
appointment of the Custodian commenced on the date of the
commencement of trading of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange.

The amount due to Mr. Chui is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The amount due to Mr. Yau is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Mr. Yau had beneficial interests in these companies. The
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The maximum amounts outstanding during the year
ended 30 June 2008 were equivalent to the carrying amounts
as at 30 June 2008.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

(a)

FR AEEHEBEEATREERETZ
REWT : (&)

Bt -

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BREAQRAHEBREZEETE (M)
BRABA(REEEANDR-ZZNF
ARATRAVZREER R ([REE
Bz  REEEARBEAQRRM
REEERHK (FEE-RITBRE) -
B-ZZNFAA—HERHMEF -

RIEREEERR REEEAEEEA
DAEATERESNEEREEEESE
600,000/8 TRAEEREREGERAIZ
BEEFESF1.25%2ERE  FrizE%E
AEEEAERBEE—F3650 2tk °
REEEHBZEBE ST LtERA T+
AREAREEEAUEEARAKL -

BEAQRERBITRT ([FEEADR=
ZE=F+ANAMT L ZEE R @ 7
EABEBADRREEBSTERS
BRZETEARAZES  RBAER
Alz&Es KRADFWIRE KA
Dk EEAZERBRAAQT ZRHHM
RAEBRATEE R Mg -

BRGELREREN REARARE
REE -

BAEREZHABRER RERAE
BERME -

EREERREREZERT 2EHE - % E
REREERR RERERERHEE-
REBE_ZENFAA=Z+THLEFEZ
BEAEERESHER-ZZNFA
A=+ HZKREEMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

M. FAEALTRBAERS (®)

(a)

Annual Report 2008 4 )

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties and connected parties:
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Mr. Yau had beneficial interests in CNI Asset. The amount
due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Mr. Chui had beneficial interests in Four Gold. The amount
due from Four Gold is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

The Group had 18.25% equity interest in Quidam at 30 June
2008. The term loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per
annum and repayable on 31 December 2009.

The Group had 7.97% equity interest in Ferndene at 30 June
2007. The loan granted to Ferndene by the Group is secured
by personal guarantees, repayable within one year and bears
interest at 8% per annum.

The Group had 30% equity interest in Kwong Fai Motor
Company Limited at 30 June 2006 and has been disposed of
the year 30 June 2007. The loan granted to Kwong Fai Motor
Company Limited by the Group is unsecured, repayable
within one year and bears interest at 7% per annum.

Pursuant to investment management agreement dated 17
May 2007 entered into between the Company and Tripod,
Tripod agreed to provide the Company with investment
management services (excluding general administrative
services) commencing on 17 May 2007.

(a)

FR AEEHEBEEATREERETZ
REWT : (&)

Bt - (A7)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

EREBEZHEBCNI Assetz B - BF
EAREBEAEERF RERERERE
ggo

BEEBEREAFour GoldZ 2 - IR
Four Gold X IEAEKH - RERERE
SRIEE -

R-ZZENFEFARA=ZTH AEEEFF
Quidamz18.25% M2 # - EHE R B &
ER REFZBEFERENR=ZZH
Ft+t-—A=t—REE-

RZZBEZLtFRA=1+HB XEEHF
BFerndene27.97%MR #& - A& B [
Ferndene#® ¥ 2 & F LB A B R IK I
AR —FAEERAFFIE%E ©

R-ZZEZARFAA=+H A5
BKwong Fai Motor Company Limited
2Z30%RE WABE—ZTZTLF A
=+ HLEFEHE - A&EE@Kwong Fai
Motor Company Limitedi¥ ¥ 2 &XR A
EBIER AR -FREERUFFNZERTY%

FTE

REAARESER-ZZLFRA+L
B zREEE RS RERSHA=
ZZLFRATEHEEAAARMHEER
BEEERSE (—RITBIRBERI) o

(xv) The Group had 11.25% equity interest in IIN Network at 30 xv) R=ZZEENFEFARA=1TH AKEEFHE
June 2008. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and 1IN Network 2 11.25%8% % - 5 B8 E K
repayable on demand. BAEEKR RERERERERE-

(xvi) The Group had 18.25% equity interest in Quidam which holds xvi) R=ZZEZENFARA=1TH AKEEFHE

84% equity interest in Orbrich Finance at 30 June 2008. The
loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per annum for the
period from 1 May 2007 to 30 April 2008 and 12% per annum
for the period from 1 May 2008 to 31 December 2008. The
amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

QuidamZ18.25% /% #& - MQuidam#F &
Orbrich FinanceZ84%%# - BRI E X
AEERHFE R-_ZZSLtFRA—HBZE=
ZEN\FNA=1+HHERFREETT
BERR-ZZEENFHEA—HBZZZEN
F+-A=+—BHBERFEFN=12E
B - FHEREAREN ZERERE
RIEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties and connected parties:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(xvii) The Group had 10% equity interest in Woddlock as at 30
June 2008. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

(xviii) The Group had 18% equity interest in Winwide as at 30
June 2008. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

RE P mRME

M. FAEALTRBAERS (®)

(a)

(b)

FR AEEHEBEEATREERETZ
REWT : (&)

Bt - (A7)

xVil R=ZZBNFARA=1+H KXEBEFE
Woddlock Z10%8% #E o F& 155X 18 73 MK
H RERBREREE-

ViR =—ZEENFARA=1+H KAEEIEFE
Winwide Z18%% # o J& 1 X 18 & & i
HRERBREREE -

FTEEBEABZ#HS
FR ESRHMETEZEEBREZME
ME

2008 2007

—EENE —ETtHF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short-term benefits EHEA 6,602,000 1,036,000
Post-employment benefits BEERA 24,000 24,000
6,626,000 1,060,000

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

EERFIETRAEBZHMEN2RBEKSE
ZEARBETSBELEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35. REHEN AR
The Group as lessee rEBEREABRA
The Group leases certain of its offices under operating lease RELEANTH  AEEHEETE THA
arrangements. Leases are negotiated for a term of two years. o HEANKHREAME
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments REER > AEERUTHBERERZ T o #HE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BERNERRZRBEHEESEENT

operating leases which fall due as follows:

2008 2007

—EENE —EELHF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 1,320,000 161,986

In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERERF(BEEEME) 220,000 -

1,540,000 161,986

Lease for rented premise are negotiated for an average of two HEMFHANLHREATIRME  mAS
years and rental are fixed for an average of two years. FHE E W E o

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EFEE

As at 30 June 2008, the Group had pledged the following assets REZZENFARA=1+H AEERHFTIE

to secure the finance leases, debenture issued by the Company EEBRLATMERY B TEEEREN
and the margin payables: REFES 2K :

2008 2007

—EENE —EELHF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Plant and equipment (Note 16) MERRE (HiE16) 2,088,388 1,740,908

Available-for-sale investments (Note 19) Bt H &R E (f1:F19) 59,663,364 =

Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 20) BRARERERRREEZ
EBMEE (B:F20) 24,484,446 20,756,120
86,236,198 22,497,028
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisitions of available-for-sale
investments contracted for but not

RBEAHHEREZ

BE2ERHX

provided in the consolidated financial

statements

RE P mRME

37. EXRESE

BEANERRNGE B BERE

2008 2007
—®BN\E  —ETLF
HK$ HK$
T BT
17,406,485 _

38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an
extraordinary general meeting on 17 July 2008, the share
consolidation of every two issued shares of HK$0.01 each
to be consolidated into one share of HK$0.02 each in the
share capital of the Company. The share consolidation is
effective from 18 August 2008.

On 13 August 2008, the Company issued and allotted
rights issue of 616,172,727 rights shares of HK$0.05 each
on the basis of one right share for every two existing
shares held. Proceeds of approximately HK$30,809,000
were received from the right issue of 616,172,727 rights
shares.

On 27 October 2008, the Group has signed a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its entire interest in Easymade Group. The
consideration was approximately HK$15,000,000.

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7

3. FHEHHKER

(a)

(b)

(c)

RER-ZENFLtATERETZR
RENAS BB EERER  AQF
ETRDEH  BARQAAREHERES
BEE.OET 2 ERITRAEHE—R
FRMEE0.02BTZRM - ROHESHE=
ZEENFENATNBRBEN -

—EENFENAT=ZH A DAUNU
HE A RIEER0.05% T 3 1T & B 3%
616,172,727 R IR 17 EERBHFE
MBRRERMDAIERE —RERES - AA
=) E H5%616,172,727 5% 15 A% A% 12 0 Y BX
F 15778 £930,809,0005% 7T °

RZZBENFE+A=++tH AEEHHE
BUE=ZFEBEEHE UHEHR
EasymadefE Bz 2 &R - BREARERN
#15,000,00058 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 39. BB R T &

Annual Report 2008 4 )

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employee’s basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$94,683 (2007: HK$44,267) represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in respect
of the current financial year.

AEERBERFMEABRSHERIRESERS
HREE v EERY —EHERAHRBES
8 HRDBRBEEZEARFE 2B DL
5 UREBEZAEESECRIRENEFER
HRAM - ZRBEEFHE2EER— BB
EEESHA  BAEEZEEIHERE - &
SEzEEHRROBEESAEHAKEZHE
BEMA -

REEEERTBRZEKAR%94,68378 T (=
ZELE 442678 ) EAE BB A Y KE
ERZETEENS 2 HR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

RE P mRME

40. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 40. pRIEEAEX
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Plant and equipment = KR 1,208,397 448,575
Interests in subsidiaries R B ARz 156 240
Interest in an associate REtE N al 2R - 2,650,000
1,208,553 3,098,815
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 17,902,901 =
Financial assets at fair value through BEARERERRNEEZERERE
profit or loss 889,445 2,450,590
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAARIE - RE R HMERFRIE
receivables 1,997,965 34,367,711
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE YR BT B 2 B FRIE 124,994,424 46,150,197
Amount due from an investee company EWIESZIRE N AHE 2,299,420 =
Amounts due from related companies FEURREE N B FIE 12,400 9,800
Amounts due from directors EWEEFE - 49,155
Bank balances RIT4EEER 7,366,979 7,954,209
155,463,534 90,981,662
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals HihENREREFTE A 3,351,496 3,420,308
Amounts due to directors EESEFE 150,477 =
Amount due to an investee company EESREQARE 746,244 =
Amounts due to related companies FESREE A B FRIE 1,445,873 4,503,275
Debentures BRERE 10,000,000 22,000,000
15,694,090 29,923,583
Net current assets RBEEFE 139,769,444 61,058,079
140,977,997 64,156,894
Capital and reserves ERRFHE
Share capital B 12,323,454 6,043,636
Reserves ] 128,654,543 58,113,258
Total equity attributable to equity holders AT REFE AEGEELALE
of the Company 140,977,997 64,156,894

QB  SINOKATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION & % h 2 12 & A R 24
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

41. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 41. XA Rl fEfE
Investment
Share revaluation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R EE REEGHE 2t EE At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 July 2006 RZBERFLHA—H 89,612,428 - (18,919,507) 70,692,921
Loss and total recognised ZANFEFERERER
expense for the year Bk 4% - = (29,189,964)  (29,189,964)
Issue of bonus shares B ATALRR (B12£30(a))
(Note 30(a)) (4,168,227) - - (4,168,227)
Issue of ordinary shares NEREFNBTEBR
by placing (Note 30(b)) (B12£30(b)) 22,431,000 - - 22,431,000
Shares issue expenses I 10 21T & A (1,652,472) - - (1,652,472)
At 30 June 2007 and REZBELFARA=TH
1 July 2007 R=-ZEZ+tHE+tA—H0 106,222,729 —  (48,109,471) 58,113,258
Loss and total recognised ZAEEFEKEHER
expense for the year B X 4458 - - (14,194,242) (14,194,242)
Gain on fair value change REZEEBER Z2TH#
of available-for-sale HERERBRALEZ
investment and total AREZE 2 KR
income recognised
directly in equity - 2,902,901 - 2,902,901
Issue of ordinary shares by MR AN BTEBR
rights issue (Note 30(c))  (B##30(c)) 51,370,909 - - 51,370,909
Issue of ordinary shares by UEEANETEZBER
placing (Note 30(d)) (K1a£30(d)) 32,836,000 - - 32,836,000
Shares issue expenses RPBEITER (2,374,283) - - (2,374,283)
At 30 June 2008 R-ZZEZENFAA=1+H 188,055,355 2,902,901 (62,303,713) 128,654,543
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at

30 June 2008 are as follows:

Name

£

CNI Finance Limited

Concolor Holdings Limited

Richbird Holdings Limited

Kendervon Profit Inc.

Ethnocentric Investment Limited

CNI Capital Limited

Kenabell Trading Limited

Million Full Assets Limited

Class of
shares held

FiiE R0 5

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary

EER

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary

EBER

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary

EBR

Ordinary
EER

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
TR/
BEREELY

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERLEHE /A

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBELRE/ B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBELEE/BE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REELRS/BE

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REELRE/BE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REELRE/BE

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EF R A 7

42. TEHMB LA

Nominal value
of issued share
and fully paid

share capital
BRTRHOK
BRERAEE

HK$100
100 T

US$1

1%7

Us$1

1%7

Us$1

1%7

US$1

1%7

HK$3
3BT

Us$1

1%7

US$1

1%7

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

ERAEL

RERAL
Directly

EE

Indirectly
Gk

100% =

100% =

100% —

100% -

100% =

- 100%

100% -

100% =

e P mRME

R-ZZZBNFEARNA=1TH  ARAMBFEZE
ENBARZFBOT

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding

REZR
Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investments of listed
securities in Hong Kong

RENEBZ LS

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&Za##mRm=

For the year ended 30 June 2008 &#Z — 2 N\FRA=THIFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. T EME A A (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the ERINEADRBTESRAETEZEREEHEE
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected REEZHMBLAR  c EERABINEHEMHEL
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other AEE BSEERBEENE -

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as REARFRNEMERE > SIEMEBARESE
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. MEBITZEEES

43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 43. LB F
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform ETUBRBEFETFEHIE  URSELEERZ
with the current year’s presentation. 2HER o
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100

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

R

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the

FEERARERMBERRZBEZAEHRFE

Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from the HEzEeIx¥sE EEHEGHMERINT :
audited financial statements, is set out as follows:
E
RESULTS
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENF “2ELE “2ERE —ZTHE —ZTME
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT BT
(Restated)*
(E50)*
Turnover* Sl 13,356,186 9,300,855 8,405,609 194,907 956,301
(Loss) profit before tax BRBEAD (&518) & A (22,999,435) 1,127,349 11,858,413 (9,522,352) (13,479,325)
Income tax expenses FEHEX (443,250) (136,884) (450,000) - -
(Loss) profit for the year attributable ~ AXARREZEA
to equity holders of the Company EEEE (B8) &85 (23,442,685) 990,465 11,408,413 (9,522,352) (13,479,325)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AEHER
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
SERENF ZERRLF SEERF SRERF 0 CIEOF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
(Restated)*
(E50)*
Total assets BEE 262,885,489 153,000,035 86,467,322 42,126,088 33,582,899
Total liabilities BERE (32,015,075) (35,697,961)  (7,453,077)  (7,674,863) (363,552)
Total equity attributable to equity APERESEA
holders of the Company EiEERAR 230,870,414 117,302,074 79,014,245 34,451,225 33,219,347
* (Adjusted to reflect the prior year adjustments) * (RFABURREFRAE)
& Reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. & REHFABEUREAFEZE2IGR -

SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT CORPORATION fEZH AR E R EFH R A 7
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